



Qualification Specification for:

OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business > Qualification No: 603/7399/4



Qualification Regulation Information

OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business

Qualification Number: 603/7399/4

Operational start date:	15 April 2021
Operational end date:	31 March 2026
Certification end date:	31 March 2029

Qualification operational start and end dates indicate the lifecycle of a regulated qualification. The operational end date is the last date by which learners can be registered on a qualification and the certification end date is the last date by which learners can claim their certificate.

All OCN NI regulated qualifications are published to the Register of Regulated Qualifications (<u>http://register.ofqual.gov.uk/</u>). This site shows the qualifications and awarding organisations regulated by CCEA Regulation and Ofqual.

OCN NI Contact Details

Open College Network Northern Ireland (OCN NI) Sirius House 10 Heron Road Belfast BT3 9LE

 Phone:
 028 90463990

 Web:
 www.ocnni.org.uk



Foreword

This document explains OCN NI's requirements for the delivery and assessment of the following regulated qualification:

\rightarrow OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business

This specification sets out:

- Qualification features
- Centre requirements for delivering and assessing the qualification
- The structure and content of the qualification
- Unit details
- Assessment requirements for the qualification
- OCN NI's quality assurance arrangements for the qualification
- Administration

OCN NI will notify centres in writing of any major changes to this specification. We will also publish changes on our website at <u>www.ocnni.org.uk</u>

This specification is provided online, so the version available on our website is the most up to date publication. It is important to note that copies of the specification that have been downloaded and printed may be different from this authoritative online version.



Contents

Foreword	3
About Regulation	5
Qualification Summary	6
Sector Subject Area	6
NOS - Agricultural Business	6
Qualification Aim	6
Qualification Objective	6
Qualification Target Group	
Progression Opportunities	
Entry Requirements	
Ensuring Health and Safety of Learners	
Qualification Support	
Delivery Languages	
Centre Requirements for Delivering the Qualification	
Centre Recognition and Qualification Approval	
Centre Staffing	
Tutors and Assessors	
Internal Verification	
Structure and Unit Content	
Unit Grading Structure	
Qualification Grading Structure	
Rationale for Grading Across the Units	
Unit Details (Mandatory units)	
Enterprise specific mandatory units	
Optional units (for all Enterprises)	106
Only one unit to be completed	
Quality Assurance of Centre Performance	116
External Verification	
Standardisation	116
Administration	117
Registration	117
Certification	
Charges	
Equality, Fairness and Inclusion	
Retention of Evidence	117



About Regulation

OCN NI

Open College Network Northern Ireland (OCN NI) is a regulated Awarding Organisation based in Northern Ireland. OCN NI is regulated by CCEA Regulation to develop and award professional and technical (vocational) qualifications from Entry Level up to and including Level 5 across all sector areas. In addition, OCN NI is regulated by Ofqual to award similar qualification types in England.

The Regulated Qualification Framework: an overview

The Regulated Qualification Framework (RQF) was introduced on 1st October 2015: the RQF provides a single framework for all regulated qualifications.

Qualification Level

The level indicates the difficulty and complexity of the knowledge and skills associated with any qualification. There are eight levels (Levels 1-8) supported by three 'entry' levels (Entry 1-3).

Qualification Size

Size refers to the estimated total amount of time it could typically take to study and be assessed for a qualification. Size is expressed in terms of Total Qualification Time (TQT), and the part of that time typically spent being taught or supervised, rather than studying alone, is known as Guided Learning Hours (GLH).



Qualification Summary

Sector Subject Area

3.1 Agriculture

This qualification relates to the following national occupational standards:

NOS - Agricultural Business

Qualification Aim

The aim of the OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business is to provide those undertaking the qualification with a comprehensive set of skills and knowledge, related to agriculture or commercial horticulture business management, while providing business benefits to those undertaking it.

Qualification Objective

The objective of the OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business is to provide learners with skills and knowledge related to managing and operating agriculture or commercial horticulture businesses. This qualification will provide learners with the underpinning knowledge, understanding and skills required to work in land-based industries.

Qualification Target Group

The OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business is targeted at learners who currently are or intend to be employed in a range of agriculture or commercial horticulture related occupations and wish to gain a nationally recognised qualification in agricultural business at Level 3.

Progression Opportunities

The OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business will enable progression to higher level qualifications including degree level programmes in related areas and/or directly into relevant employment within land-based industries.



Entry Requirements

Applicants to the OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business course must meet **one** of the following entry criteria prior to enrolling and must be at least 16 years of age:-

I. Hold at least four GCSE qualifications (or equivalent) at Grade C or above and including English, Maths and Science

Or

II. Hold a Level 2 qualification* in Agriculture or Horticulture and GCSE qualifications (or equivalent) at Grade C or above in English and Maths

(*eligible Level 2 qualifications include Level 2 Technical Certificate in Agriculture/Horticulture, Level 2 Diploma in Agriculture/Horticulture, National Certificate in Agriculture/Horticulture, College Certificate in Agriculture/Horticulture, Level 2 Diploma in Work based Agriculture, Level 2 Apprenticeship in Agriculture, NVQ Level 2 in Livestock Production; NVQ Level 2 in Agriculture/Horticulture)

Or

III. Possess significant industry experience (at least 5 years working in farming or in commercial horticulture) and hold GCSE qualifications (or equivalent) at Grade C or above in English and Maths

(In Northern Ireland, equivalent qualifications to GCSE English and Maths are Essential Skills qualifications at Level 2 in Application of Number/Numeracy and Communication/Literacy).

Ensuring Health and Safety of Learners

Within the OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business the health, safety and security of learners are paramount. Every effort must be made by the centre and those involved in the delivery to ensure that learners operate in a safe and secure environment where risk of injury is minimum. Particular attention should be given to:

- ensuring learners are briefed about health, safety and security procedures including how to identify hazards and report accidents/injuries/dangerous occurrences
- ensuring learners understand the key legislative and best practice aspects of the agricultural industry
- ensuring necessary risk assessments are carried out
- ensuring appropriate levels of supervision are agreed and implemented prior to delivery
- ensuring learners are aware of the hazards of working with animals, farm/ horticultural equipment and slurry
- clear accident reporting procedures being in place
- machinery, tools and/or equipment to ensure they are in safe working order and learners are given proper instruction, training, protective clothing and supervision
- appropriate insurance arrangements being in place



Qualification Support

A Qualification Support pack is available for OCN NI centres within the login area of the OCN NI website (<u>https://www.ocnni.org.uk/my-account/</u>), which includes additional support for teachers, eg planning and assessment templates, guides to best practice, etc.

Delivery Languages

This qualification is available in English only at this time. If you wish to offer the qualification in Welsh or Irish (Gaeilge) then please contact OCN NI who will review demand and provide as appropriate.



Centre Requirements for Delivering the Qualification

Centre Recognition and Qualification Approval

New and existing OCN NI recognised centres must apply for and be granted approval to deliver these qualifications prior to the commencement of delivery.

Centre Staffing

Centres are required to have the following roles in place as a minimum, although a member of staff may hold more than one role*:

- Centre contact
- Programme co-ordinator
- Assessor
- Internal Verifier

*Note: A person cannot be an internal verifier for any evidence they have assessed.

Centres must ensure that staff delivering, assessing and internally verifying qualifications are both trained appropriately and competent to do so.

Tutors and Assessors

The qualifications are assessed within the centre and are subject to OCN NI's quality assurance processes. Units are achieved through internally set, internally assessed, and internally verified evidence.

Tutors and Assessors must:

- have a minimum of an Honours degree or equivalent qualification in Agriculture, or Agricultural Technology, or Agricultural Economics and Management, or in a closely related subject
- have a minimum of 12 months relevant post qualification experience in agriculture
- have a minimum of 12 months direct or related relevant experience in assessment

Assessors must assess all assessment tasks and activities.



Internal Verification

OCN NI qualifications must be scrutinised through the centre's internal quality assurance processes as part of the recognised centre agreement with OCN NI. The centre must appoint an experienced and trained internal verifier whose responsibility is to act as the internal quality monitor for the verification of the delivery and assessment of the qualifications.

The centre must agree a working model for internal verification with OCN NI prior to delivery of the qualification.

Internal Verifiers must:

- have at least one year's occupational experience in the areas they are internally verifying
- attend OCN NI's internal verifier training if not already completed

Internal verifiers are required to:

- support tutors and assessors
- sample assessments according to the centre's sampling strategy
- ensure tasks are appropriate to the level being assessed
- maintain up to date records supporting the verification of assessment and learner achievement



Structure and Unit Content

OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business

In order to achieve this qualification, the learner must achieve all 9 mandatory units (90 credits) plus 80 credits from only one of the enterprise specific pathways (i.e. Dairy, Beef, Sheep, Pigs, Crops or Horticulture) plus one 10 credit unit from the All Enterprises pathway, totalling 180 credits.

Total Qualification Time (TQT) for this qualification: Guided Learning Hours (GLH) for this qualification: 1800 hours 1080 hours

Unit Reference Number	OCN NI Unit Code	Unit Title	Credit Value	GLH	Level
		Mandatory units			
<u>L/618/6896</u>	CBF343	Plant and Soil Science	10	60	Three
<u>R/618/6897</u>	CBF344	Animal Science and Nutrition	10	60	Three
<u>Y/618/6898</u>	CBF345	Health and Safety for Land-based Businesses	10	60	Three
<u>D/618/6899</u>	CBF346	Business Management	10	60	Three
<u>J/618/6900</u>	CBF347	Business Planning	10	60	Three
<u>L/618/6901</u>	CBF348	Undertake a Land- based Business Project	10	60	Three
<u>R/618/6902</u>	CBF349	Machinery Operations	10	60	Three
<u>Y/618/6903</u>	CBF350	Environmental Sustainability	10	60	Three
<u>D/618/6904</u>	CBF351	Habitat Management	10	60	Three
	E	nterprise Specific U	nits		
		DAIRY			
<u>H/618/6905</u>	CBF352	Livestock Production and Husbandry	10	60	Three
<u>K/618/6906</u>	CBF353	Animal Health and Welfare	10	60	Three
<u>M/618/6907</u>	CBF354	Building Design and Maintenance	10	60	Three



<u>T/618/6908</u>	CBF357	Enterprise Management, Supply Chain and Marketing	10	60	Three			
<u>A/618/6909</u>	CBF358	Dairy Production	20	120	Three			
<u>M/618/6910</u>	CBF359	Grassland Production	20	120	Three			
	BEEF							
<u>H/618/6905</u>	CBF352	Livestock Production and Husbandry	10	60	Three			
<u>K/618/6906</u>	CBF353	Animal Health and Welfare	10	60	Three			
<u>M/618/6907</u>	CBF354	Building Design and Maintenance	10	60	Three			
<u>T/618/6908</u>	CBF357	Enterprise Management, Supply Chain and Marketing	10	60	Three			
<u>T/618/6911</u>	CBF360	Beef Production	20	120	Three			
<u>M/618/6910</u>	CBF359	Grassland Production	20	120	Three			
		SHEEP						
<u>H/618/6905</u>	CBF352	Livestock Production and Husbandry	10	60	Three			
<u>K/618/6906</u>	CBF353	Animal Health and Welfare	10	60	Three			
<u>M/618/6907</u>	CBF354	Building Design and Maintenance	10	60	Three			
<u>T/618/6908</u>	CBF357	Enterprise Management, Supply Chain and Marketing	10	60	Three			
<u>K/618/6937</u>	CBF362	Sheep Production	20	120	Three			
<u>M/618/6910</u>	CBF359	Grassland Production	20	120	Three			
		PIGS						
<u>H/618/6905</u>	CBF352	Livestock Production and Husbandry	10	60	Three			
<u>K/618/6906</u>	CBF353	Animal Health and Welfare	10	60	Three			
<u>M/618/6907</u>	CBF354	Building Design and Maintenance	10	60	Three			
<u>T/618/6908</u>	CBF357	Enterprise Management, Supply Chain and Marketing	10	60	Three			



<u>M/618/6938</u>	CBF363	Pig Production	20	120	Three
<u>T/618/6939</u>	CBF364	Managing Pig Health and Welfare	10	60	Three
<u>K/618/6940</u>	CBF365	Advanced Pig Management Systems	10	60	Three
		CROPS			
<u>M/618/6941</u>	CBF366	Crop and Horticulture Production and Husbandry	10	60	Three
<u>T/618/6942</u>	CBF367	Integrated Pest Management	10	60	Three
<u>M/618/6907</u>	CBF354	Building Design and Maintenance	10	60	Three
<u>T/618/6908</u>	CBF357	Enterprise Management, Supply Chain and Marketing	10	60	Three
<u>A/618/6943</u>	CBF368	Specialist Machinery Operations	10	60	Three
On	nly one of the	Production units belo	w can be cho	sen:	
<u>F/618/6944</u>	CBF369	Combinable Crop Production	20	120	Three
<u>R/618/6947</u>	CBF370	Potato Production	20	120	Three
Only one	of the Harve	esting and Storage unit	ts below can b	e chosen:	
<u>Y/618/6948</u>	CBF371	Harvesting and Storage of Combinable Crops	10	60	Three
<u>D/618/6949</u>	CBF372	Harvesting and Storage of Potato Crops	10	60	Three
		HORTICULTURE			
<u>M/618/6941</u>	CBF366	Crop and Horticulture Production and Husbandry	10	60	Three
<u>T/618/6942</u>	CBF367	Integrated Pest Management	10	60	Three
<u>M/618/6907</u>	CBF354	Building Design and Maintenance	10	60	Three
<u>T/618/6908</u>	CBF357	Enterprise Management, Supply Chain and Marketing	10	60	Three



<u>A/618/6943</u>	CBF368	Specialist Machinery Operations	10	60	Three
<u>R/618/6950</u>	CBF373	Harvesting and Storage of Horticultural Crops	10	60	Three
On	ly one of the	Production units belo	w can be cho	sen:	
<u>Y/618/6951</u>	CBF374	Ornamental Crop Production	20	120	Three
<u>H/618/6953</u>	CBF375	Soft Fruit Production	20	120	Three
OPTIONA	L UNITS (for	all Enterprises) – only	one unit to be	complete	d
<u>K/618/6954</u>	CBF376	Human Resource Management	10	60	Three
<u>M/618/6955</u>	CBF377	Safe Handling and Application of Pesticides using Vehicle Mounted Sprayers	10	60	Three
<u>A/618/6957</u>	CBF378	Safe Handling and Application of Pesticides using Knapsack Sprayers	10	60	Three
<u>F/618/6958</u>	CBF379	All-Terrain Vehicles and Rough Terrain Telescopic Forklift Operations	10	60	Three



Unit Grading Structure

Each unit will be graded as Pass/Merit/Distinction/Fail. All units are internally assessed within this qualification, and each unit has specified assessment criteria at the Pass, Merit and Distinction unit grades.

Unit grading Matrix

Unit grading matrix

- To achieve a pass in a unit the learner must have successfully completed all of the pass assessment criteria in that unit
- To achieve a merit in a unit the learner must have successfully completed all of the pass and merit criteria in that unit
- To achieve a distinction in a unit the learner must have successfully completed all of the pass, merit and distinction criteria in that unit

Qualification Grading Structure

The qualification will be graded overall as follows:

Pass Pass Pass Merit Pass Pass Merit Merit Pass Merit Merit Merit Distinction Merit Merit Distinction Distinction Merit Distinction Distinction Merit Distinction* Distinction Distinction Distinction* Distinction* Distinction*

Rationale for Grading Across the Units

Learners achieving a pass should have a sound knowledge and understanding of the area being assessed, the majority of assessment criteria (AC) are at pass level. Learners meeting all learning outcomes at pass standards stated in the AC in a unit will gain a pass for that unit.

Learners achieving a merit will have demonstrated that they can complete more complex tasks beyond the pass level; there are fewer AC's at these levels. Learners meeting all learning outcomes at pass standards, and where available also at merit standards stated in the AC in a unit will gain a merit for that unit.

Learners achieving a distinction will have demonstrated they can complete more complex tasks at a consistently high level, beyond the merit level; there are fewer AC's at these levels. Learners meeting all learning outcomes at pass standards, and where available also at merit and distinction standards stated in the AC in a unit will gain a distinction for that unit.



Calculation of the Qualification Grade

The above grades are attained by gaining points for the successful achievement of each unit and the aggregation of those points and conversion to a qualification grade. The following table details the points allocated for pass, merit and distinction for each of the units within the qualification.

	Linit Code	Credit	dit Points per unit grad		
Unit Title	Unit Code	Value	Pass	Merit	Distinction
Plant and Soil Science	<u>L/618/6896</u>	10	70	80	90
Animal Science and Nutrition	<u>R/618/6897</u>	10	70	80	90
Health and Safety for Land-based Businesses	<u>Y/618/6898</u>	10	70	80	90
Business Management	<u>D/618/6899</u>	10	70	80	90
Business Planning	<u>J/618/6900</u>	10	70	80	90
Undertake a Land- based Business Project	<u>L/618/6901</u>	10	70	80	90
Machinery Operations	<u>R/618/6902</u>	10	70	80	90
Environmental Sustainability	<u>Y/618/6903</u>	10	70	80	90
Habitat Management	<u>D/618/6904</u>	10	70	80	90
Dairy Production	<u>A/618/6909</u>	20	140	160	180
Beef Production	<u>T/618/6911</u>	20	140	160	180
Sheep Production	<u>K/618/6937</u>	20	140	160	180
Pig Production	<u>M/618/6938</u>	20	140	160	180
Grassland Production	<u>M/618/6910</u>	20	140	160	180
Combinable Crop Production	<u>F/618/6944</u>	20	140	160	180
Potato Production	<u>R/618/6947</u>	20	140	160	180
Ornamental Crop Production	<u>Y/618/6951</u>	20	140	160	180
Soft Fruit Production	<u>H/618/6953</u>	20	140	160	180



Livestock Production and Husbandry	<u>H/618/6905</u>	10	70	80	90
Animal Health and Welfare	<u>K/618/6906</u>	10	70	80	90
Managing Pig Health and Welfare	<u>T/618/6939</u>	10	70	80	90
Advanced Pig Management Systems	<u>K/618/6940</u>	10	70	80	90
Harvesting and Storage of Combinable Crops	<u>Y/618/6948</u>	10	70	80	90
Harvesting and Storage of Potato Crops	<u>D/618/6949</u>	10	70	80	90
Crop and Horticulture Production and Husbandry	<u>M/618/6941</u>	10	70	80	90
Integrated Pest Management	<u>T/618/6942</u>	10	70	80	90
Building Design and Maintenance	<u>M/618/6907</u>	10	70	80	90
Enterprise Management, Supply Chain and Marketing	<u>T/618/6908</u>	10	70	80	90
Specialist Machinery Operations	<u>A/618/6943</u>	10	70	80	90
Harvesting and Storage of Horticultural Crops	<u>R/618/6950</u>	10	70	80	90
Human Resource Management	<u>K/618/6954</u>	10	70	80	90
Safe Handling and Application of Pesticides using Vehicle Mounted Sprayers	<u>M/618/6955</u>	10	70	80	90



Safe Handling and Application of Pesticides using Knapsack Sprayers	<u>A/618/6957</u>	10	70	80	90
All-Terrain Vehicles and Rough Terrain Telescopic Forklift Operations	<u>F/618/6958</u>	10	70	80	90

The points per unit are added up and then converted to a qualification grade using the following table.

Points for Qualification Grade Conversion

Points range	Grade
1260 - 1299	ррр
1300 - 1339	МРР
1340 - 1379	MMP
1380 - 1419	МММ
1420 - 1459	DMM
1460 - 1499	DDM
1500 - 1529	DDD
1530 - 1559	D*DD
1560 - 1589	D*D*D
1590 and above	D*D*D*



Unit Details (Mandatory units)

Title		Plant and Soi	I Science					
		Three						
Credit Valu	arning Hours	<u>10</u> 60						
(GLH)		00						
OCN NI Ur	nit Code	CBF343						
Unit Refere		L/618/6896						
		s unit will enable the learner to understand plant and soil science and how its application						
	can positively impact on soil and plant growth and development.							
Learni		Assessm	ent Criteria	A	ssessment Criteria	Ass	essment Criteria	
Learni	ing Outcomes	= F	Pass		= Merit		= Distinction	
structu of inte plant o organs		plant str 1.2. Explain of the m structure 1.3. Explain the majo cells, tis organs of	and external ructures. the functions ajor plant es. the function of or specialist sues and of given plants.		Explain the relationship between structure and function for major plant structures.	1.D.1	Evaluate how the function of internal and external plant structures dictates their use within a land- based sector.	
and de plants		 2.2. Explain of reprogram given plate 2.3. Explain plant ge plants. 2.4. Explain requirem for majo minerals 	given plants. the processes duction in two ants. the process of rmination in the nents of plants r and minor s.	2.M.1	Evaluate at least two plants to identify deficiencies.			
proces		plant pro a) photo b) respi c) uptal and l and r d) trans	ke, transport oss of water nutrients piration	3.M.1	and internal factors can affect main processes of plant physiology.	3.D.1	Explain the manipulation of plant physiology to enhance plant performance.	
charao the gro develo	rstand how soil cteristics affect owth and opment of plants ow these are fied.	 the char different 4.2. Determi investiga characte given sc 4.3. Explain and con 	ation the eristics of a bil sample. how soil type dition affects bowth and	4.M.1	Explain the optimum soil characteristics for growth of a given plant species.			



Assessment Guidance

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Animal Science and Nutrition
Level	Three
Credit value	10
Guided Learning Hours	60
(GLH)	
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF344
Unit Reference No	R/618/6897
I be the second a second structure (s). The	

Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand biological systems in ruminant and nonruminant livestock. Learners will be able to develop a feeding plan to meet the nutritional requirements of given livestock.

	Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria = Pass	Ass	essment Criteria = Merit	As	sessment Criteria = Distinction
1.	Understand reproductive systems in livestock.		Explain the structure and function of the male and female reproductive systems in ruminant and non- ruminant. Summarise the role of hormones in the reproductive process.	1.M.1	Explain the stages of sexual reproduction and gestation in a given farm animal.	1.D.1	Explain the hormonal control of the oestrous cycle in a given farm animal.
2.	Understand respiratory and cardiovascular systems in livestock.	2.1.	Explain the structure and function of the respiratory and cardiovascular systems of a given farm animal.				
3.	Understand digestion and excretion in livestock.		Explain the structure and processes of the digestive system in ruminant and non- ruminant livestock. Explain the structure and function of the excretory system in ruminant and non- ruminant livestock.	3.M.1	Explain at least three factors which may contribute to the disruption of digestive processes in livestock.	3.D.1	Evaluate the effects of disruption to digestive processes on livestock health including associated costs.
4.	Be able to develop a feeding plan.	4.3.	Summarise factors which affect the nutritional requirements of a given farm animal. Classify the essential nutrients required for a given farm animal. Summarise the nutrient content of feedstuffs for a given animal. Create a feeding plan to include an appropriate ration for a given group of farm animals.	4.M.1	Develop with justification criteria that can be used in the evaluation of the feeding plan in AC 4.4.	4.D.1	Evaluate the effectiveness of the feeding plan in AC 4.4 including costings and identification of possible areas for improvement.



Assessment Guidance

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Health and Safety for Land-bas	sed Businesses				
Level Credit Value	Three 10					
Guided Learning Hours	60					
(GLH)						
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF345					
Unit Reference No	Y/618/6898					
Unit purpose and aim(s): T associated with managing	his unit will enable the learner to	identify, evaluate and reduce	the Health and Safety risks			
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria			
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction			
 Understand health and safety legislation and responsibilities within a land-based business. 	 1.1 Summarise Northern Ireland health and safety legislation relating to land-based businesses and promoted by the farm safety partnership. 1.2 Explain the legal and organisational health and safety responsibilities for the following in a land- based business: a) people b) equipment and materials c) the work area 1.3 Explain the importance of carrying out risk assessments for all 	1.M.1 Evaluate the key health and safety roles and responsibilities of at least three stakeholders involved in a land- based business.				
2. Be able to carry out risk audits and assessments to promote health and safety.	 work activities. 2.1 Complete a health and safety risk audit to identify relevant risks in at least three of the following risk areas: a) slurry b) animals c) falls d) equipment e) other relevant risks 2.2 Carry out as risk assessment for two of the risk areas identified in AC 2.1. 	 2.M.1 Create a map identifying the location of potential services and utilities hazards to support the management of health and safety. 2.M.2 Develop a communication plan to ensure that persons associated with business activities are made aware of how to minimise health and safety risks. 	2.D.1 Evaluate how a positive health and safety culture may be established and promoted in a land- based business.			
3. Be able to develop a health and safety improvement plan.	 3.1 Summarise types of accidents that may occur based on the risks identified in AC 2.1. 3.2 Develop a long term health and safety improvement plan to 					



	1				
	a A 3.3 E c c w h	ddress the potential accidents identified in AC 3.1. Explain the possible onsequences of not arrying out actions within the long term realth and safety mprovement plan.			
 Be aware of the health and safety records required by land-based businesses. 	s ra b 4.2 E ra ra ra c	Explain why health and afety records are equired by land-based usinesses. Explain the records equired and individuals esponsible for their naintenance in order to omply with health and afety legislation.	not adh legislat	uences of hering to the ive ments for ng hts and	4.D.1 Explain how established health and safety procedures and records will assist the management of health and safety in a given land-based business.
Assessment Guidance					
Assessment Guidance					
The following assessment covered.	method/	s may be used to ensure	all learning out	comes and as	ssessment criteria are fully
Assessment Method		Definition		Possible Co	ontent
Portfolio of evidence	work undertaken to be evidence to meet requ outcomes OR A collection of docume work that shows the le		assessed as ired skills ents containing	Learner note Learner log/ Peer notes Record of ol Record of di	oservation
Practical demonstration/assignment		A practical demonstrat skill/situation selected by learners, to enable	by the tutor or Learner notes/written work learners to Learner log		
		practise and apply skill knowledge		g	
Coursework		practise and apply skill	a and nat count al outcome kills and/or	Record of ol	es/written work record



Title			ness Management				
Lev	el dit value	Thre 10	e				
	ded Learning Hours	60					
(GL		00					
	N NI Unit Code	CBF	346				
	t Reference No		8/6899				
Uni	t purpose and aim(s): T		it will enable learners to un	derstan	d how to use business	manag	ement tools to
			to a land-based business				
	Learning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria	As	sessment Criteria	As	sessment Criteria
	-		= Pass		= Merit		= Distinction
1.	Understand the	1.1.	Summarise the structure and size of the	1.M.1	Evaluate the impact		
	importance of the agri-food industry in		agri-food industry in NI.		of stakeholders on a given land-based		
	Northern Ireland	12	Explain the contribution		sector.		
	(NI).		of a given land-based				
			sector to the NI				
			economy.				
		1.3.	Identify the types of				
			businesses associated				
			with a given land-based sector and their role.				
		1.4.	Summarise the				
			stakeholders associated				
			with a given land-based				
			sector.				
2.	Understand how to	2.1.	Explain the importance	2.M.1	Interpret physical	2.D.1	Evaluate a given
	use physical and financial records.		of maintaining accurate physical and financial		records for a given land-based		land-based business
	intancial records.		records.		business to inform		performance
		2.2	Explain two types of		decision making.		against industry
			physical records.	2.M.2	Interpret financial		benchmarks using
		2.3.	Explain four types of		records for a given		physical and
			financial records.		land-based		financial records
		2.4.	Explain the benefits of		business to inform		identifying possible
			cash flow planning and monitoring to the		decision making.		areas for improvement.
			business.				improvement.
		2.5.	Explain the use of				
			physical and financial				
			records in monitoring				
			business performance				
2	Indorators d the	24	and progress.	2 1 4	Dovolon a plan to	2 1 4	Evoluoto hovi the
3.	Understand the benefits of how	3.1.	Identify IT applications available to land-based	3.IVI.1	Develop a plan to incorporate at least	3.D.1	Evaluate how the IT tool used in the
	Information		businesses assessing		one IT tool for		plan developed in
Í	Technology (IT) can		the benefits of each		physical and		AC 3.M.1 may
	be used to inform		including how they		financial record		improve
Í	business decisions		inform business		management for a		performance for the
	within a land-based		decision making.		given land-based		given land-based
	business.	3.2.	Evaluate how the use of		business.		business.
			online tools may enhance business				
			decision-making within				
			a land-based business.				
4.	Understand business	4.1.		4.M.1	Evaluate the	4.D.1	Evaluate how
	resources and		the legal and		effectiveness of the		resources,
	structures.		organisational		legal structure for a		business structure
Í			structures of land-		given land-based		and stakeholder
			based businesses.		business.		relationships affect



4.3	 Explain the taxation system relating to a given land-based business. Explain using examples the different types of resource requirements of a given land-based business. Summarise using examples different job roles and responsibilities in a given land-based business. 			success in a given land-based business.
Assessment Guidance				
The following assessment meth covered.	nod/s may be used to ensure	all learning out	comes and asse	essment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	work undertaken to be a evidence to meet requir outcomes OR A collection of documer	work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's		written work ary ervation ussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration skill/situation selected b by learners, to enable le practise and apply skills knowledge	on of a by the tutor or earners to	Record of obse Learner notes/ Learner log	
Coursework	Research or projects the towards a learner's fina and demonstrate the sk knowledge gained throu course	l outcome ills and/or ighout the	Record of obse Learner notes/ Tutor notes/red Learner log/dia	/written work cord
E-assessment	The use of information t assess learners' work	echnology to	Electronic port E-tests	folio



Title	Dusiness Dispring				
Title Level	Business Planning Three				
Credit Value	10				
	60				
Guided Learning Hours (GLH) OCN NI Unit Code	CBF347				
Unit Reference No	J/618/6900				
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand the skills required to manage a business. The learner will also be able to assess the business environment a given business operates within, develop a business idea and prepare a business					
plan.	5 1 7 1 11				
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria		
 Be able to evaluate the business environment in order to identify business opportunities. 	 = Pass 1.1. Explain the relationship between the operation of a given business and the marketplace in which it operates. 1.2. Carry out a Strengths, Weaknesses Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) analysis to identify internal and external factors that currently affect a given business. 1.3. Summarise three opportunities for business development based on findings from SWOT analysis undertaken in AC 1.2. 	= Merit 1.M.1 Evaluate key internal and external factors that currently affect the operations of a given business based on findings from SWOT analysis undertaken in AC 1.2.	= Distinction 1.D.1 Develop recommendations based on findings from SWOT analysis undertaken in AC 1.2. to address change within the given business environment.		
 Be able to research and plan for development opportunities for a given business. 	 2.1. Research the market for a business development opportunity. 2.2. Use an appropriate tool or methodology to develop an idea for a business development opportunity identified in A.C.2.1. 2.3. Estimate the resource requirements for the business development opportunity identified in AC 2.1. 	2.M.1 Summarise the main legislative requirements the business should consider when implementing the business development. opportunity identified in AC 2.1.	2.D.1 Evaluate the key factors to be considered when implementing the business development opportunity identified in AC 2.1. and make recommendations regarding its potential success.		
 Understand the skills and personal development needs required to successfully manage a business. 	 3.1. Summarise the key skills required to successfully manage a business. 3.2. Explain the importance of continual professional development for a manager within a successful business. 3.3. Summarise the non-financial business support and advice available to assist with running a business from each of the following: 	 3.M.1 Carry out a skills and knowledge audit for a given business opportunity. 3.M.2 Evaluate findings of skills and knowledge audit undertaken in AC 3.M.1 identifying possible areas 	3.D.1 Create a training and development plan based on the findings of the skills audit undertaken in AC 3.M.1.		



4. Be able to create a business plan for a given business development opportunity.	 a) government b) non-government bodies c) commercial businesses 4.1. Create a business plan for a given business development opportunity to include the following: a) nature of the business b) business aims and objectives c) legal and organisational structure d) market research and competitor analysis e) business marketing plan f) physical, financial and human resource requirements g) financial forecasts - set-up costs, fixed costs, variable costs and cash flow forecast h) measures of success including financial and non- 	4.M.1 F e fi c a fi b c c	or training and levelopment. Research and evaluate the unding options available to inance the ousiness plan created in AC I.1.	4.D.1 Develop contingency plans for at least three potential changes within the business environment that may impact the business plan created in AC 4.1.
	financial key performance			
	indicators			
Assessment Guidance The following assessment metho covered.	od/s may be used to ensure all lea	rning out	comes and asse	essment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Con	tent
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course		ary ervation	
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the by learners, to enable learner practise and apply skills and knowledge	a tutor or	Record of obso Learner notes/ Learner log	



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Undertake a Land-based Bu	isiness Project	
	Three		
Credit Value	10		
Guided Learning Hours	60		
(GLH) OCN NI Unit Code			
Unit Reference No	CBF348 L/618/6901		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This		ha abla ta undartaka a la	nd based business project
including developing, impleme			nd-based business project
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria =	Assessment Criteria =
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	Merit	Distinction
 Be able to research and develop a project proposal within the land- based business sector. 	 1.1. Research and select an appropriate area of interest that may facilitate the development of a project proposal. 1.2. Investigate a specific issue or topic within the area selected in AC 1.1 for project. 1.3. Create a project proposal for the project specified in AC 1.2 to include the following a) reasoning for the investigation b) methodology c) timelines d) format of report e) presentation of 	1.M.1 Evaluate the potential impact of the proposed project.	1.D.1 Justify the potential value of the project to the land-based business sector or individual business, quantifying the financial and non-financial benefits.
2. Be able to create a project plan.	findings 2.1. Develop a project plan featuring specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and, time-bound (SMART) objectives for the project proposal created in AC 1.3 to include the following criteria : a) milestones b) resources c) research methods d) evidence based outcomes	2.M.1 Justify reasons for selection of resources identified in A.C 2.1.	
 Be able to carry out the project adhering to the project plan. 	 3.1. Implement the project ensuring outcomes are appropriately evidence based. 3.2. Monitor project in line with criteria detailed in project plan developed in AC 2.1. 	3.M.1 Explain the importance of regularly monitoring project progress against the project plan.	

OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business Qualification no. 603/7399/4 Updated: 19 July 2021



4. Be able to report on and evaluate the project.	 3.3. Analyse the health and safety implications of undertaking the project identified in A.C.3.1. 4.1. Record and present outcomes of the project undertaken in A.C 3.1 to a given audience in an appropriate and effective manner. 4.2. Evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of the project. 4.3. Develop a summary report based on the outcomes of the project identifying possible further actions. 	 4.M.1 Develop a summary report on the project undertaken in AC 3.1. identifying possible areas for improvement in how the project was conducted. 4.M.2 Justify a course of action based on the outcomes of the project undertaken in AC 3.1. 	 4.D.1 Develop a detailed project report to include a) project planning b) monitoring undertaken, completion and outcomes c) resource use d) project evaluation e) recommendations and possible further actions
Assessment Guidance The following assessment met covered.	hod/s may be used to ensure	all learning outcomes an	d assessment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written w Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	vork
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written w Learner log	<i>r</i> ork



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Machinery Operations						
Level Credit Value	Three 10						
Guided Learning Hours	60						
(GLH)							
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF349						
Unit Reference No	R/618/6902						
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand the purpose, operation and maintenance of a							
	range of land-based machinery with particular reference to health and safety and the environment. The learner will also be required to demonstrate skills in relation to operation and maintenance of a range of land-based machinery						
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria				
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction				
 Understand the purpose, function and legislative requirements associated with land- based machinery. 	 1.1. Explain legislative requirements for the operation of two given land-based machines. 1.2. Summarise the different power sources used in land-based machinery. 1.3. Summarise machinery which is subject to regular testing in order to comply with legislative requirements. 	 1.M.1 Justify the selection of a piece of land-based machinery to complete a given task to include suitability, performance and cost. 1.M.2 Develop a training plan for operators using the machines identified in AC 1.1. 					
2. Be able to prepare land-based machinery and application equipment.	 2.1. Create a pre-work checklist in line with manufacturer's guidance . 2.2. Perform daily pre-start checks on a given piece of land-based machinery. 2.3. Summarise the benefits of correct preparation and adjustment of land- based machinery. 2.4. Set up a given piece of application equipment to apply a specified rate of product. 						
3. Be able to safely operate land-based machinery and implements.	 3.1. Demonstrate the safe coupling and uncoupling of land-based implements. 3.2. Demonstrate the safe operation of a given land-based machine to carry out an activity. 3.3. Explain how site and environmental conditions can affect the safe and effective operation of the machine identified in in AC 3.2. 	3.M.1 Critically evaluate the operation of the machinery identified in AC 3.2 identifying possible areas for improvement of safety of the operation.					



4.	Be able to carry out land-based machinery maintenance and basic repairs.	4.2.	Diagnose and identify faults, defective or worn parts in a given land- based machine. Explain the benefits of adhering to the manufacture's manual and undertaking preventative maintenance. Perform maintenance and basic repairs on a land-based machine.	4.M.1	Create service history and maintenance records for a given land-based machine.	4.D.1	Compare and contrast two options for servicing and repair of a given land-based machine to include cost, parts and labour. Select with justification the preferred option for servicing and repair identified in AC 4.D.1.
5.	Understand the environmental impact of land-based machinery operations.	5.2.	Explain three impacts that land-based machinery operations may have on the environment. Explain how hazardous substances associated with land-based machinery operation and servicing should be managed to minimise environmental impact. Summarise the effect tyre pressure and axle weight have on soil structure under different soil conditions.	5.M.1	Justify for a given scenario a suitable inflation pressure of a tyre to minimise soil compaction.	5.D.1	Evaluate tyre or track technologies that can minimise soil compaction including cost and practicality of use.
	Assessment Guidance						
	The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.						
As	sessment Method	Definition		Possible Co	ntent		

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content		
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log		
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary		
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests		



Title							
Title Level	Environmental Sustainability						
Credit Value	Three 10						
Guided Learning Hours	60						
(GLH)	00						
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF350						
Unit Reference No	Y/618/6903						
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable learners to understand the impact of land-based business practices on							
ecosystems. It will also provide learners with an understanding of good management practices that will enhance the							
soil, air, water and biodiversity Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria						
g	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction				
1. Understand environmental sustainable management practices that can be adopted by land-based businesses.	 1.1 Explain sustainability in the context of a land- based business. 1.2 Explain four options a land-business may take to enhance environmental sustainability. 1.3 Explain four threats that may impact negatively on environmental sustainability. 1.4 Summarise how businesses may improve environmental sustainability by introducing positive practices. 	1.M.1 Compare and contrast two sustainability options identified in A.C 1.2 that a given land- based business could implement.	1.D.1 Evaluate how a sustainability option identified in A.C 1.M.1. could be implemented in a given land-based business.				
2. Understand relevant environmental legislation and codes of practice that impact on the land-based sector.	 2.1 Summarise the relevant legislation and codes of practice for soil, air, water and biodiversity. 2.2 Explain the records to be kept in order to comply with legislation. 2.3 Summarise current legislation relating to nutrient management. 2.4 Summarise the environmental financial support and advisory services available for a land-based business. 	2.M.1 Develop an environmental management plan for a given land- based business which adheres to relevant legislation.	2.D.1 Evaluate the overall positive impact of a piece of environmental legislation relating to a given land- based business.				



 Understand the sources and effects of unsustainable management from the land-based sector. 	3.1 3.2 3.3	Define what is meant by unsustainable management. Explain the effects that unsustainable management has on soil, air, water and biodiversity ecosystems. Summarise the main areas of unsustainable practices affecting soil, air, water and biodiversity ecosystems.	3.M.1 Compar contrasi unsusta manage practice ecosyst	t two iinable ement es in a given		
4. Understand the positive impacts that can be achieved, by businesses implementing good environmental practices.	4.1	Summarise how good land practices impact positively on the following using two examples for each: a) soils b) air quality c) biodiversity d) water quality Summarise the main measures that may be taken to mitigate pollution of soil, air, water and biodiversity ecosystems.	differen that ma order to impact o water a biodiver	eness of two t measures y be taken in positively on soil, air, nd sity for a nd-based	4.D.1 Evaluate the effectiveness and positive impact of two measures identified in A.C 4.2 on pollution and land-based business performance	
Assessment Guidance						
The following assessment me covered.	thod/s	s may be used to ensur	e all learning out	comes and ass	sessment criteria are fully	
Assessment Method		Definition		Possible Content		
Portfolio of evidence	of evidence A collection of docum work undertaken to be evidence to meet required outcomes OR A collection of docum work that shows the le progression through t		e assessed as uired skills ents containing earner's		oservation	
Practical A practical demonstration/assignment skill/situation selected by learners, to enable practise and apply ski knowledge		tion of a by the tutor or learners to		Record of observation _earner notes/written work _earner log		



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title Level	Habitat Management Three		
Credit Value	10		
Guided Learning	60		
Hours (GLH)			
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF351		
Unit Reference No	D/618/6904		
Unit purpose and aim(s	<i>:):</i> This unit will enable the learner to	o understand the range of diff	ferent habitats and biodiversity
in Northern Ireland and	the principles of habitat creation ar		
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction
 Understand the main habitat types and biodiversity present in Northern Ireland (NI). 	 Summarise three habitat types present in NI and their benefits to a land- based business and biodiversity. Summarise the main threats to habitats and biodiversity in NI. Explain the ecological importance of having a range of different habitats on a land-based business. 	1.M.1 Explain how land- based business practices may improve habitats.	1.D.1 Evaluate indicator flora and fauna species and species composition associated with a given habitat.
2. Understand how to comply with the legislation and policies in place to protect habitats and biodiversity.	 2.1. Explain the main legislation and policies that are in place to protect habitats and biodiversity. 2.2. Summarise the impact on land-based business practices of the legislation and policies identified in AC 2.1. 2.3. Summarise organisations that provide support and advice on habitat maintenance and establishment. 	2.M.1 Analyse the impact on a land- based business if the legislation and policies are not adhered to.	2.D.1 Evaluate how organisations can be utilised to maintain or enhance existing farm habitats.
 Be able to carry out a farmland habitat survey to inform future maintenance or enhancement. 	 3.1. Explain the function of habitat and biodiversity benchmark surveys. 3.2. Carry out a habitat and biodiversity benchmark survey on a given land- based business habitat. 3.3. Report on the findings of the survey carried out in A.C.3.2. 3.4. Create a best management practice action plan for the habitat identified in AC 3.2 including how it can be: a) be maintained b) improve its biodiversity value 	3.M.1 Explain the benefits to the land-based business of the action plan created in AC 3.4.	3.D.1 Evaluate how the benefits identified in A.C 3.M.1 may be achieved through modifying current management practices and make possible recommendations for improvement.



4. Understand how to create a new habitat.	 4.1. Res hab esta site. 4.2. Dev Plar to in a) b) 	include the physical resources required to best manage the existing habitat earch a suitable new itat that could be blished on a given elop a Habitat Action n (HAP) on a given site clude: biodiversity benefits physical resources required biodiversity aftercare financial support schemes		targets bench the ne identifi 4.1. Justify habita selecti prepar suitabl selecti with th	id justify s for future marking of w habitat ied in AC t design, site ion, land ration and le species ion in line ie HAP oped in 2.	4.D.1	Carry out the necessary work to establish the new habitat in line with the HAP developed in A.C 4.2.
Assessment Guidanc The following assessm covered.		/s may be used to ensur	e all lea	rning o	utcomes and a	assessn	nent criteria are fully
Assessment Method		Definition			Possible Co	ontent	
Portfolio of evidence		A collection of docume containing work under assessed as evidence required skills outcome OR A collection of docume containing work that st learner's progression t course	taken to to meet es ents nows the		Learner note Learner log/o Peer notes Record of ob Record of dis	diary oservatio	on
Practical demonstration/assignm	ient	A practical demonstrat skill/situation selected or by learners, to enab practise and apply skil knowledge	by the to le learn		Record of ob Learner note Learner log		
Coursework		Research or projects the towards a learner's fina and demonstrate the s knowledge gained thro course	al outco kills and	me I/or	Record of ob Learner note Tutor notes/r Learner log/o	s/writte ecord	
E-assessment		The use of information to assess learners' wo		ogy	Electronic po E-tests	ortfolio	



Enterprise specific mandatory units

Title	Livestock Production and Hu	ushandn.			
Level	Three	ispariury			
Credit Value	10				
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60				
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF352				
Unit Reference No	H/618/6905				
	<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This unit will enable the learner to understand livestock production systems and husbandry procedures in order to improve the efficiency and standard of livestock production systems.				
procedures in order to improve the	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria		
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction		
 Understand the livestock production systems commonly used for a range of livestock in Northern Ireland (NI). 	 Summarise the main livestock production systems in NI. Explain the use of different livestock breeds within production systems. Compare and contrast the use of pure-bred and cross- bred livestock. Summarise the factors that determine the choice of a livestock production system for a given farm business. 	1.M.1 Review changes over a given time period for a given livestock production system including numbers, values and markets.	1.D.1 Analyse the factors that have driven the changes to the livestock production system reviewed in A.C.1.M.1 including future potential for the production system.		
2. Understand the physical conditions and appropriate accommodation requirements for farm livestock.	 2.1. Summarise the accommodation requirements for livestock production system. 2.2. Explain the routine accommodation checks required for two different livestock accommodations. 2.3. Explain why outdoor livestock production systems are not prevalent in NI. 	2.M.1 Justify the accommodation choice for a given farm animal production system.			
 Be able to handle livestock safely. 	 3.1. Perform risk assessments for at least two daily routines on a given livestock production system. 3.2. Justify the selection of appropriate equipment to carry out safe animal handling in a farm setting. 	3.M.1 Interpret and apply health and safety legislation relevant to livestock husbandry tasks.	3.D.1 Explain behaviour patterns of a given farm animal and how this affects the safe handling of animals.		



	3.3. Demonstrate safe handling techniques of at least five animals.	
 Be able to carry out routine husbandry tasks. 	 4.1. Summarise routine husbandry tasks for livestock production systems. 4.2. Select a livestock enterprise and carry out five routine husbandry tasks in safe and efficient manner. 4.3. Explain the importance of completing appropriate records on completion of routine tasks. 	
Assessment Guidance	d/s may be used to ensure all learning o	outcomes and assessment criteria are fully
	d/s may be used to ensure all learning o	outcomes and assessment criteria are fully
The following assessment metho	d/s may be used to ensure all learning o	outcomes and assessment criteria are fully Possible Content
The following assessment metho covered.	-	·
The following assessment metho covered. Assessment Method	Definition A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation
The following assessment metho covered. Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical	DefinitionA collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the courseA practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and	Possible Content Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion Record of observation Learner notes/written work



Title	Animal Health and Welfare					
Level	Three					
Credit value	10					
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60					
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF353					
	hit Reference No K/618/6906					
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This unit will enable learners to understand the principles of animal health and welfare issues as they relate to an enterprise						
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria			
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction			
 Be able to manage livestock health in accordance with legislation. 	 1.1 Explain giving examples the five freedoms of animal welfare. 1.2 Explain the signs of good and ill health in given farm animals. 1.3 Carry out health checks on given farm animals using equipment appropriately. 1.4 Explain why the handling of animals should comply with relevant legislation and minimise stress 	1.M.1 Summarise the health checks carried out in A.C 1.3 to assist monitoring of animals.	1.D.1 Evaluate the health status and well-being of animals on a given farm, identifying areas for possible improvement.			
2. Understand how to manage common diseases and disorders that affect livestock.	 and injury. 2.1 Explain the role of pathogenic organisms in animal disease and the immune system. 2.2 Explain the reasons for and methods of preventative care and treatment used for animals. 2.3 Summarise common diseases and disorders in given livestock and their impact on health and welfare including notifiable and zoonotic diseases. 2.4 Summarise the prevention and treatment of common diseases and disorders in given livestock. 2.5 Explain the importance of minimising the use of antimicrobial treatments to prevent antimicrobial resistance. 	2.M.1 Summarise the role of the immune system, including the different types of immunity and the process of the immune response.	2.D.1 Evaluate the effects of a zoonotic disease and a notifiable disease on a farm.			



3.	Understand how to promote and maintain the health and welfare of animals.	3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4	contribute to the overall health status of animals on a farm. Explain the importance of biosecurity to animal health and welfare. Summarise biosecurity measures that may be implemented on a farm.	3.M.1	Implement the plan in A.C.3.4 for a given livestock and explain the outcome.	3.D.1	Evaluate the effectiveness of current on-farm bio-security measures identifying areas for improvement.
4.	Be able to administer and record animal treatments.	4.3	Carry out the administration of at least three basic routine and two non- routine animal treatments safely, in line with codes of practice and legislation. Explain methods for monitoring animals after treatment. Explain the importance of the following in relation to medicines: a) monitoring animals after treatment b) accurate record keeping c) adhering to withdrawal periods Complete required medicine records.	4.M.1	Explain the requirements by quality assurance schemes for recording and monitoring animal treatments.		



Assessment Guidance

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Building Design and Maintena	nce				
Level Credit Value	Three					
	10					
Guided Learning Hours (GLH) OCN NI Unit Code	60 ODE254					
	CBF354					
Unit Reference No	M/618/6907		in a sea d'Arte en la citatio a			
Unit purpose and aim(s): This u requirements for a given enterpu understand the importance of m	rise. The learner will also be abl aintenance and contingency pla	e to design a new building anning.	for a specific use and			
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction			
 Be able to undertake an assessment of the existing buildings for a given enterprise. 	 1.1. Conduct an inventory of existing buildings for a given enterprise including identification of purpose. 1.2. Summarise the suitability of existing buildings identified in inventory in AC 1.1 in terms of: a) space and storage b) access, layout and flow c) physical condition d) environmental control 	1.M.1 Evaluate the suitability of existing buildings identified in inventory undertaken in AC 1.1 using an appropriate tool or methodology identifying possible areas for improvement.	1.D.1 Make recommendations on how existing buildings may be improved, to address possible improvements identified in AC 1.M.1.			
 Be able to identify future building needs for a given enterprise. 	 2.1. Explain at least two potential circumstances that may influence future building needs 2.2. Identify future building needs to meet one circumstance identified in AC 2.1 2.3. Explain the options available to meet the needs identified in A.C.2.2. 	2.M.1 Select and justify the preferred options identified in AC 2.3.				
 Be able to contribute to the development of a design for a new building for a specific use. 	 3.1. Explain how the following impact on building design process: a) building use b) siting factors c) structure d) building materials and internal fittings e) legislative factors f) environmental factors g) energy saving factors 3.2. Explain two technologies that may be incorporated into building design to 	 3.M.1 Evaluate at least two appropriate technologies that could be incorporated within a new building design or specification 3.M.2 Analyse the financial implications of at least two options for one component of the new building design in AC 3.4 using given costs. 	3.D.1 Justify the building design or specification and the possible impact on the selected enterprise.			



 Understand the need for building and equipment maintenance and contingency planning. 	of buildings and equipment requiring routine maintenance. 4.2. Explain the importance of building and equipment	Develop a detailed routine maintenance schedule.4.D.1 Evaluate the potential to increase the lifespan of the building structure through future proofing design.
	maintenance to their upkeep. 4.3. Explain the importance of contingency planning.	
Assessment Guidance		
The following assessment method covered.	d/s may be used to ensure all learning	outcomes and assessment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
	practise and apply skills and knowledge	
Coursework	practise and apply skills and knowledgeResearch or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the courseThe use of information technology	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary Electronic portfolio



T :41						
Title	Enterprise Management, Supply Chain and Marketing					
Level Credit Value	Three 10					
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60					
OCN NI Unit Code	60 CBF357					
Unit Reference No	T/618/6908					
	Init will enable the learner to understand the principles of enterprise management					
within the land-based industry including physical and financial performance, supply chains, quality management and						
marketing. The learner will also	o be able to develop business improvement strategies.					
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria			
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction			
 Understand the factors that affect the physical and financial performance of an enterprise. 	 1.1. Summarise key business performance measurement and benchmarking techniques. 1.2 Summarise the key physical and financial performance indicators and appropriate targets for a given 	 1.M.1 Evaluate how the physical performance of a given business has affected the margins achieved within a given enterprise. 1.M.2 Evaluate the financial performance of a given enterprise using appropriate 	1.D.1 Use the evaluations undertaken in AC 1.M.1 and 1.M.2 to inform recommendations for at least two options for enterprise improvement.			
 Be able to develop strategies for enterprise improvement. 3. Understand the agri-food 	 enterprise. 2.1. Explain at least four strategies that can be used to improve enterprise performance. 2.2. Produce an improvement plan for a given enterprise to include rationale, aims and objectives 2.3. Evaluate the physical and financial resource requirements for the enterprise improvement plan identified in AC 2.2. 2.4. Develop an action plan including milestones for implementation of the improvement plan identified in AC 2.2. 3.1. Summarise the 	2.M.1 Justify the rationale, aims and objectives for the improvement plan identified in AC 2.2. 2.M.2 Evaluate the impact of key legislative requirements on the implementation of improvement plan identified in AC 2.2.	2.D.1 Develop key performance indicators and explain how these can be used to monitor performance.			
 Understand the agri-food or horticulture supply chain and associated quality management systems. 	 3.1. Summarise the supply chain for a given agri-food or horticulture business. 3.2. Explain using examples the features of an efficient supply chain in a given agri-food 	3.M.1 Evaluate the benefits of a quality management system within an agri-food supply chain.	3.D.1 Review management procedures within a given enterprise to ensure compliance with quality management systems identifying			



	or horticulture business. 3.3. Explain using examples the quality management systems and practices associated with a given agri-food or horticulture business.			possible areas for improvement.
 Understand the role of marketing for a given enterprise. 	 4.1. Identify current and potential customers and competitors of a given enterprise. 4.2. Explain the components of the marketing mix for a given enterprise 4.3. Explain what is meant by branding and the importance of it in the promotion of local produce. 	be me ree	valuate the enefits of eeting market quirements for a ven enterprise.	4.D.1 Evaluate potential markets for a given enterprise including supply chain challenges.
Assessment Guidance The following assessment meth covered.	od/s may be used to ensure all	learning o	outcomes and asse	essment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition		Possible Conte	ent
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaked assessed as evidence to m required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows learner's progression throu course	neet s the igh the	Learner notes/w Learner log/dian Peer notes Record of obser Record of discus	ritten work y vation
Practical	A practical demonstration of	of a	Record of obser	

skill/situation selected by the tutor

practise and apply skills and

Research or projects that count

towards a learner's final outcome

and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the

The use of information technology

to assess learners' work

knowledge

course

or by learners, to enable learners to

Learner notes/written work

Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record

Record of observation

Learner log/diary

Electronic portfolio

E-tests

Learner log

demonstration/assignment

Coursework

E-assessment



THE	Deime Des dustion		
Title	Dairy Production		
Level Credit Value	Three 20		
	120		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH) OCN NI Unit Code	CBF358		
Unit Reference No	A/618/6909		
	pose of this unit will enable the lea	arnor to understand the b	ushandry and
management of dairy production	and carry out routine dairy stock		
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction
 Understand the structure, production systems and financial considerations of the dairy industry. 	 33Summarise the structure of the dairy industry in relation to cow numbers, yield and price in the following : a) Northern Ireland (NI) b) United Kingdom c) European Union d) rest of world 1.1. Describe five dairy cow breeds used in NI production systems. 1.2. Explain three dairy production systems in NI. 1.3. Summarise the strengths and weaknesses of one dairy production system in NI. 1.4. Calculate a Gross Margin for a dairy herd. 	1.M.1 Compare and contrast two NI dairy production systems.	 1.D.1 Evaluate a given dairy production system, identifying unit cost including per litre, cow and hectare against industry standards. 1.D.2 Summarise at least three possible areas for improvement for the dairy production system evaluated in AC 1.D.1.
2. Understand the impact of dairy marketing systems.	 2.1. Explain factors that may affect milk price paid at farm level. 2.2. Summarise the requirements of different NI milk contracts. 2.3. Explain pricing trends for local liquid milk, powder and cheese and the influence of world markets. 2.4. Differentiate between milk payment systems in NI and Republic of Ireland 2.5. Compare the advantages and disadvantages of a given milk marketing system. 	2.M.1 Critically compare for a given milk sales volume and quality the outcomes of two payment regimes.	2.D.1 Critically evaluate the potential of the NI dairy industry using a strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT) analysis.



 Understand the principles of rearing dairy herd replacements. 	 3.1. Explain what is meant by the term herd replacement rate and how it is calculated. 3.2. Explain the nutritional requirements and growth targets of the following : a) calves aged 0-3 months b) weaned calves c) bulling heifers 3.3. Explain the benefits of 24 month calving. 3.4. Summarise three key diseases of dairy herd replacements that may affect performance. 3.5. Explain the control and prevention of the diseases identified in AC 3.4. 3.6. Calculate a Gross Margin for a given heifer 	3.M.1 Develop a replacement plan with targets for a given dairy herd including: a) nutrition b) growth c) health	3.D.1 Evaluate the cost of a given heifer rearing system and identifying two possible areas for improvement.
4. Understand dairy herd breeding and factors that affect fertility and performance.	 replacement enterprise. 4.1. Explain the oestrus cycle, including the physical signs of heat in a dairy cow. 4.2. Explain the methods and associated benefits of sire selection criteria for a dairy herd. 4.3. Explain the use and benefits of maternal and paternal information in selecting stock for breeding. 4.4. Summarise three methods of heat detection used in dairy herds. 4.5. Compare the benefits of natural service with Artificial Insemination (AI). 4.6. Summarise the advantages and disadvantages of using sexed semen. 4.7. Summarise the advantages of synchronisation in dairy herds. 4.8. Define, calculate and set targets for the following dairy herd fertility parameters: a) conception rate b) submission rate 	4.M.1 Create a breeding plan to include the use of sexed semen, synchronisation and pregnancy diagnosis for a given group within a herd of cows or heifers.	4.D.1 Evaluate the reproductive performance of a given dairy herd against targets identified in AC 4.8 identifying possible areas for improvement.



			 c) calving interval d) voluntary waiting period Explain the dairy herd fertility records required and the importance of maintaining these. 		
5.	Understand the management of a dairy cow at calving.		Explain the management of a dairy cow for the week prior to calving including: a) housing and environment b) health Explain the management of a dairy cow and its calf during parturition including: a) signs of calving, b) timing interventions c) hygiene d) operator safety e) cow welfare f) colostrum collection Explain the management of the dairy cow and its calf during the first week after calving.	5.M.1 Create a staff standard operating procedure (SOP) for the management of the cow and calf during parturition.	
6.	Understand the nutritional requirements and associated management of the dairy cow throughout the production cycle.	6.3. 6.4.		6.M.1 Formulate a ration based on given feed inputs to meet the energy and protein requirements of a dairy cow at a given stage of lactation.	 6.D.1 Develop costed rations for a given group of dairy cows based on a given range of forage sources to meet performance targets. 6.D.2 Justify the preferred ration from those developed in AC 6.D.1.
7.	Understand dairy cow health, management and the main production related diseases.		Summarise the indicators of poor health in dairy cows. Describe five common production cycle diseases of dairy cows and the control and prevention measures for each.	7.M.1 Develop a staff SOP in the prevention and treatment for a given disease.	7.D.1 Analyse the benefits and risks associated with Selective Dry Cow Therapy (SDCT) on two given dairy herds.



8.	Understand statutory milk hygiene requirements, their importance and application to the	 7.3. Develop a herd health plan to include the main vaccination and dosing treatments over a dairy cow's production cycle. 7.4. Explain the importance of minimising the use of antimicrobial treatments to prevent antimicrobial resistance in dairy cows. 8.1. Summarise the statutory requirements for milk hygiene. 8.2. Summarise four milking 	.1 Analyse the financial impact of two given levels of milk	
	production of clean safe milk.	 8.2. Summarise four mixing systems. 8.3. Explain the key measures of milk hygiene quality. 8.4. Summarise three causes of poor milk hygiene quality. 8.5. Summarise the benefits of four key steps within a milking procedure. 8.6. Explain the importance of routine milking system maintenance. 	hygiene for a given farm situation.	
9.	Be able to perform routine dairy stock procedures safely.	 9.1 Perform at least four routine dairy stock procedures taking into account risk assessment. 9.2 Perform at least four routine procedures associated with the care of a young calf taking into account risk assessment. 9.3 Perform condition scoring on three different dairy cows using the five point scale, taking into account risk assessment. 9.4 Perform the tasks associated with drying off a dairy cow, taking into account risk assessment. 9.5 Perform routine milking to include set up, milking and cleaning to ensure optimum milk quality and animal welfare, taking into account risk assessment. 		



Assessment Guidance

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



17 ¹⁰						
Title	Beef Production					
Level Credit Value	Three					
	20 120					
Guided Learning Hours (GLH) OCN NI Unit Code	CBF360					
Unit Reference No	Т/618/6911					
Unit purpose and aim(s): This un		orstand the bushandry and	management of boof			
production and carry out routine		erstand the husbandry and	management of beer			
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria			
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction			
 Understand the structure of the beef industry in Northern Ireland (NI). 	 1.1. Explain the structure of the NI beef industry. 1.2. Summarise two typical beef supply chains in NI 1.3. Summarise the marketing trends of beef cattle and calves in NI 1.4. Explain the main current challenges affecting the beef industry in NI 	1.M.1 Research and analyse market trends in relation to beef production systems in NI.	1.D.1 Critically evaluate the potential of the NI beef industry using a strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT) analysis.			
2. Understand common beef production systems.	 industry in NI 2.1. Explain four beef production systems in NI 2.2. Summarise the main characteristics of eight beef breeds commonly used in NI production systems. 2.3. Evaluate the suitability of the eight beef breeds for different given production systems. 2.4. Explain the key factors that influence the choice of production system. 2.5. Calculate a gross margin for a given beef production system. 	2.M.1 Evaluate strengths and weaknesses of the beef production system identified AC 2.5 based on the gross margin.	2.D.1 Evaluate a given beef production system identify unit costs, against industry standards identifying at least three possible areas for improvement.			
3. Understand the marketing of beef cattle.	 3.1. Summarise market requirements and marketing outlets for four beef production systems. 3.2. Explain the procedure for selecting finished beef livestock. 3.3. Explain pricing trends for beef livestock in NI over a five-year period. 3.4. Compare the advantages and disadvantages of 					



	liveweight marketing versus deadweight		
4. Understand the factors that affect beef carcase quality and grading.	 marketing. 4.1. Explain the carcase classification system used in NI for grading finished beef cattle. 4.2. Explain the factors that affect Kill Out % (KO%) in a beef animal. 4.3. Explain the factors that will impact on the carcase price received for a beef animal. 4.4. Explain the penalty system imposed for out-of-spec animals. 4.5. Explain how BovIS is used to analyse herd slaughter performance. 	4.M.1 Analyse given sales data provided and discuss the weights, grade and fat class achieved for the class of livestock slaughtered and identify improvements that can be made.	4.D.1 Evaluate using BovIS past herd performance identifying possible areas for improvement.
5. Understand suckler herd breeding and factors that affect fertility and performance.	 5.1. Explain the key reproductive targets for a given beef herd. 5.2. Summarise target cow body condition score at key stages of the production cycle. 5.3. Summarise factors affecting body condition score and its impact on cow fertility and productivity. 5.4. Explain the oestrus cycle including the physical signs of heat in a suckler cow. 5.5. Summarise factors affecting the cow's expression of heat behaviour. 5.6. Explain the factors affecting conception rate. 5.7. Explain the management of replacements including feeding and target growth rates. 5.8. Explain the benefits of using Estimated Breeding Values (EBVs) to aid with the selection of a beef bull for a suckler herd. 5.9. Explain the importance of 	 5.M.1 Evaluate the merits of calving suckler replacements at 24 months of age. 5.M.2 Select with justification a beef sire based on EBVs for a given beef production system. 	5.D.1 Evaluate the reproductive performance of a given beef herd against targets identifying possible areas for improvement.



 6. Understand suckler herd health 	maintaining cow fertility records and the basic records needed to monitor fertility. 5.10. Explain the advantages and disadvantages of using Al versus natural service in the suckler herd. 6.1. Explain health requirements for a	6.M.1 Determine for a	
health.	 requirements for a given beef production system. 6.2. Summarise the indicators of poor health in cattle. 6.3. Summarise five common diseases in suckler cows and beef cattle their prevention and control. 6.4. Explain the importance of Sustainable Control of Parasites (SCOPs) in reducing the build-up of resistance. 6.5. Explain the importance of minimising the use of antimicrobial treatments to prevent antimicrobial resistance in suckler cows and beef cattle. 6.6. Develop a herd health plan for a given enterprise including the main vaccination and dosing treatments over a full year. 6.7. Explain management procedures that should be applied before and after weaning to reduce health and welfare problems in calves. 6.8. Explain the importance of colostrum to the newborn calf. 	given suckler herd the control measures for a specific disease.	



	6.10. Summarise at least four common health problems that occur at calving time.		
7. Understand the nutritional requirements of suckler cow and beef herds.	 7.1. Develop a plan for the grazing and feed requirements of given suckler cow throughout the production cycle including: a) pre-breeding b) mid-pregnancy c) late pregnancy d) calving e) lactation 7.2. Explain the nutritional and mineral requirements of the following including the factors that affect feed levels: a) dry cows in late pregnancy b) lactating cows 7.3. Explain the impact of silage quality on supplementary feed levels for a given suckler cow or beef herd. 	7.M.1 Formulate a ration to meet target growth rates, energy and protein requirements for a given group of cattle based on a given silage analysis.	7.D.1 Develop and cost rations for a given group of finishing cattle based on a given range of forage sources to meet performance targets.
8. Be able to perform routine beef stock procedures and activities .	 8.1. Perform at least four routine procedures on beef cattle taking into account relevant risk assessments. 8.2. Perform condition scoring on three sucker cows using the five-point scale. 8.3. Complete routine health and movement records in compliance with relevant legislative requirements. 		
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment method covered.	d/s may be used to ensure all I	earning outcomes and asse	essment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR	Learner notes/written wor Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	k



	A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	
Practical	A practical demonstration	Record of observation
demonstration/assignment	of a skill/situation selected	Learner notes/written work
	by the tutor or by learners,	Learner log
	to enable learners to	
	practise and apply skills	
	and knowledge	
Coursework	Research or projects that	Record of observation
	count towards a learner's	Learner notes/written work
	final outcome and	Tutor notes/record
	demonstrate the skills	Learner log/diary
	and/or knowledge gained	
	throughout the course	
E-assessment	The use of information	Electronic portfolio
	technology to assess	E-tests
	learners' work	



Title	Sheep Production							
Level	Three							
Credit Value	20							
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	120							
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF362							
Unit Reference No	K/618/6937							
		erstand the husbandry and	management of sheep					
production and perform routines	<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This unit will enable the learner to understand the husbandry and management of sheep production and perform routine sheep stock procedures.							
	Assessment Criteria Assessment Criteria Assessment Criteria							
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction					
 Understand the structure of the sheep industry in Northern Ireland (NI). 	 Summarise the structure of the sheep industry in NI. Explain the stratification of the NI sheep industry, including how the systems interlink. Summarise at least three challenges affecting the NI sheep industry. Summarise the marketing trends of 	 1.M.1 Research market trends in relation to sheep production systems in NI. 1.M.2 Analyse market trends identified in AC 1.M.1. 	1.D.1 Critically evaluate the potential of the NI sheep industry using a strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT) analysis.					
 Understand sheep production systems. 3. Understand marketing 	 ewes and lambs in NI 2.1. Summarise three sheep production systems commonly used in NI 2.2. Summarise the main characteristics of ten sheep breeds used in NI and the suitability of each for different production systems. 2.3. Explain the role of cross-bred ewes and terminal sire breeds in producing prime lamb. 2.4. Explain the key factors that influence the choice of a sheep production system. 2.5. Calculate a Gross Margin for a given sheep enterprise. 3.1. Summarise market 	2.M.1 Evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of a given sheep production system based on the Gross Margin identified in AC 2.5.	2.D.1 Evaluate a given sheep production system identifying unit costs against industry standards identifying at least three possible areas for improvement.					
3. Understand marketing criteria for sheep.	 3.1. Summarise market requirements and marketing outlets for sheep. 3.2. Explain the procedure for selecting finished lambs. 3.3. Summarise the factors that impact on sheep marketing including: a) timing b) carcase quality 							



4.	Understand factors that affect lamb carcase quality and grading.	3.5.	 c) market specifications Explain the importance of export markets to the sheep industry. Evaluate the reasons for price fluctuations for lamb throughout the year. Explain the carcase classification system used in NI for grading 	4.M.1	Evaluate given sales data including		
		4.3. 4.4.	finished lambs. Explain the factors that affect kill-out percentage in a lamb. Summarise factors that may impact the carcase price received for a lamb. Explain the penalty system imposed for out-of-spec lambs.		weights, grade and fat class achieved for the class of livestock slaughtered. Summarise possible improvements that may be made following evaluation undertaken in AC 4.M.1.		
5.	Understand the breeding cycle of ewes.	5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5.	Summarise the key reproductive performance targets for a sheep flock. Explain the oestrus cycle of a ewe. Explain the seasonality of sheep production and techniques that may be used to advance the breeding season. Explain the reasons for culling. Summarise how to prepare a flock of sheep for the breeding season and how this may impact on flock performance. Explain the target ewe body condition score at key stages of the production cycle and how they affect fertility levels.	5.M.1	Explain the selection of suitable male and female breeding stock for a given sheep enterprise to include the selection, sources and costs of the replacement.	5.D.1	Evaluate the reproductive performance of a given flock against industry standards identifying possible areas for improvement.
6.	Understand the management of sheep health.		Summarise the indicators of poor health in sheep and lambs. Describe five common sheep diseases and disorders and the	6.M.1	Explain the control measures for two specific diseases for a given sheep flock.	6.D.1	Develop a five point action plan to minimise the development of wormer resistance.





8. Be able to perform routine sheep stock procedures safely.	 d) addressing surpluses and shortages 7.3. Explain the feed requirements of the ewe during pre-lambing and lactation. 7.4. Explain the dry matter intakes, metabolisable energy (ME) and protein requirements of the pregnant ewe. 7.5. Develop a feeding plan for pregnant and lactating ewes based on a given silage analysis. 7.6. Explain the feeding options and associated costs for store lambs. 8.1. Perform at least four routine procedures on ewes, rams and lambs taking into account risk assessment. 8.2. Perform at least four routine sheep stock procedures associated with care of the newborn lamb taking into account risk assessment. 8.3. Perform condition scoring on at least three ewes or rams using the five point scale taking into 		
	 account risk account risk assessment. 8.4. Perform ram pre- breeding checks taking into account risk assessment. 8.5. Complete routine health and movement records in compliance with relevant legislative requirements. 		
Assessment Guidance The following assessment metho	d/s may be used to ensure all l∉	earning outcomes and asse	essment criteria are fullv
covered.			
	4		

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion



	OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	
Practical	A practical demonstration of	Record of observation
demonstration/assignment	a skill/situation selected by	Learner notes/written work
-	the tutor or by learners, to	Learner log
	enable learners to practise	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	and apply skills and	
	knowledge	
Coursework	Research or projects that	Record of observation
	count towards a learner's	Learner notes/written work
	final outcome and	Tutor notes/record
	demonstrate the skills and/or	Learner log/diary
	knowledge gained	
	throughout the course	
E-assessment	The use of information	Electronic portfolio
	technology to assess	E-tests
	learners' work	



Title	Pig Production			
Level	Three			
Credit Value	20			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	120			
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF363			
Unit Reference No	M/618/6938			
	t will enable the learner to understa			
	ms, the production cycle, breeding a oducing and rearing replacement l			
	ding herds and marketing of pigs.			
care, husbandry and managemen				
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction	
1. Understand the structure of	1.1. Summarise the following	1.M.1 Analyse trends	1.D.1 Analyse the	
the pig industry and pig	key statistics for the pig	in producer	potential of the	
processing sector in	industry in NI:	and pig	NI pig industry	
Northern Ireland (NI) and	a) number of producers	numbers,	using a	
the challenges faced by	b) sow and pig numbers	average	strengths,	
them.	c) average herd size	deadweight, P ₂	weaknesses,	
	1.2. Summarise key statistics for the pig processing	and number of pigs	opportunities and threats	
	sector in NI:	slaughtered	(SWOT)	
	a) number of abattoirs,	over a given	analysis.	
	b) number and average	time period in		
	deadweight of pigs	NI.		
	slaughtered			
	1.3. Explain at least three			
	challenges currently faced by the NI pig and			
	pig processing industries.			
2. Understand pig production	2.1. Explain the four pig	2.M.1 Evaluate a		
systems in NI.	production systems used	given pig		
	within NI.	production		
	2.2. Explain three factors that	system.		
	influence the choice of a			
	production system. 2.3. Explain two supply chains			
	for pig production in NI.			
	2.4. Explain the strengths and			
	weakness of a given			
	production system.			
3. Understand the production	3.1. Summarise the breeding	3.M.1 Evaluate how	3.D.1 Evaluate the	
cycle, breeding and	herd production cycle.	husbandry	performance of	
husbandry required for optimum breeding herd	3.2. Summarise the information required to	factors can affect sow	a given breeding herd	
performance.	facilitate analysis of	fertility and	identifying	
portornanoo.	breeding herd	productivity at	possible areas	
	performance.	all stages of	for	
	3.3. Explain five physical	production.	improvement.	
	indicators used to			
	evaluate breeding herd			
	performance and specify industry averages.			
	3.4. Summarise the key			
	husbandry factors that			
	influence the performance			
	of the following:			
	a) dry sows			



	 b) lactating sows c) suckling pigs 3.5. Explain the husbandry of sows from weaning to service. 3.6. Summarise the factors that affect conception rate. 		
 Understand the principles of producing and rearing replacement breeding stock. 	 4.1. Critically compare the advantages and disadvantages of two sources of replacement gilts. 4.2. Summarise two breeding policies for producing replacement gilts. 4.3. Summarise the records and physical criteria used for the selection of replacement gilts. 4.4. Explain the husbandry of gilts from selection to service. 4.5. Explain the feeding regime of gilts from selection to service. 	4.M.1 Create a gilt replacement plan for a given pig farm identifying husbandry, targets, health and nutritional requirements.	
5. Understand the production cycle and husbandry requirements for optimum feeding herd performance.	 5.1. Summarise the production cycle of a feeding herd. 5.2. Summarise the information required to facilitate analysis of feeding herd performance. 5.3. Summarise three physical indicators used to evaluate feeding herd performance. 5.4. Summarise the key husbandry factors that affect growth rate and feed efficiency. 	5.M.1 Evaluate how husbandry factors can affect growth rate and feed efficiency.	5.D.1 Evaluate performance of a given feeding herd identifying possible areas for improvement.
 Understand nutrition, feeding regimes and methods for breeding and feeding herds. 	 6.1. Explain the nutritional requirements and feeding regimes of sows from: a) weaning to service b) service to farrowing c) farrowing to weaning 6.2. Critically compare meal and pellet feeding in terms of growth rate and feed efficiency. 6.3. Critically compare dry and wet feeding in terms of growth rate and feed efficiency. 	6.M.1 Develop and justify feeding plans for a) dry and lactating sows b) growing pigs	6.D.1 Evaluate the effect of failing to meet nutritional requirements on a given group of pigs.
 Understand the marketing of pigs and factors that affect carcase quality. 	7.1. Summarise two options for marketing pigs.7.2. Explain three factors that affect the price received for finished pigs.	7.M.1 Evaluate factors that influence the price received per pig for a given data set.	7.D.1 Use PIGIS to evaluate carcase quality identifying possible areas



	 7.3. Summarise the factors that affect carcass quality. 7.4. Explain how the Pig Grading Information System (PIGIS) is used to assess carcass quality. 	7.M.2 Critically compare the carcass quality of pigs on a given pig farm with the industry average.	for improvement.
8. Be able to perform routine care, husbandry and management activities.	 8.1. Carry out routine husbandry and care activities for sows, gilts and pigs. 8.2. Complete accurate husbandry records for given breeding and feeding herds. 8.3. Complete appropriate records accurately as required by legislation. 		
Assessment Guidance	od/o mov ho wood to opowro all loarning	a outcomes and seeses	mont critoria are fully
	od/s may be used to ensure all learning Definition	outcomes and assess Possible Content	ment criteria are fully
The following assessment meth covered.			en work
The following assessment meth covered. Assessment Method	Definition A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and	Possible Content Learner notes/writte Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observat Record of discussion Record of observat Learner notes/writte	en work ion on
The following assessment meth covered. Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical	Definition A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to	Possible Content Learner notes/writte Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observat Record of discussion Record of observat Learner notes/writte	en work ion on ion en work



Title	Managing Pig Health and Welfare			
Level	Three			
Credit Value	10			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60			
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF364			
Unit Reference No	T/618/6939			
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand sow and pig diseases and conditions, the impact of husbandry and other control measures on pig health, importance of pig welfare and current legislation and the effect of internal and external biosecurity on pig health and welfare. The learner will also be able to evaluate the disease status of pig herds, husbandry options to improve health, performance and welfare on a specific pig farm and develop welfare protocols and a biosecurity plan.				
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria =	Assessment Criteria	
	= Pass	Merit	= Distinction	
 Understand diseases and conditions specific to sows and pigs that impact on welfare and performance. 	 1.1 Explain three reproductive diseases that affect pig herd welfare and performance 1.2 Explain two parasitic conditions that affect pig herd welfare and performance 1.3 Explain three respiratory conditions that affect pigs 1.4 Summarise the impact of ill health on pig herd welfare and performance 	1.M.1 Evaluate the disease status of a given pig herd.	1.D.1 Critically compare disease levels in a given pig herd with industry averages and evaluate the impact on welfare and performance.	
2. Understand the impact of husbandry and other control measures on pig health.	 2.1 Explain the effect of husbandry on breeding herd health, performance and welfare. 2.2 Explain the effect of husbandry on growing pig health, performance and welfare. 2.3 Summarise other control measures for improved pig herd health. 2.4 Explain the importance of minimising the use of antimicrobial treatments to prevent antimicrobial resistance in pigs. 	2.M.1 Evaluate husbandry options to improve health, performance and welfare on a given pig farm.	2.D.1 Develop and justify a health plan for a stage of production on a given pig farm.	
3. Understand pig welfare and current legislation.	 3.1 Summarise the importance of pig welfare to the pig business. 3.2 Explain six key welfare legislative requirements for sows, boars and gilts. 3.3 Explain six key welfare requirements for growing pigs. 	3.M.1 Develop a welfare protocol for a given pig farm for each stage of production.		



 Understand the effect of internal and external biosecurity on pig health and welfare. 	 4.1 Explain the importance of biosecurity on a pig farm. 4.2 Summarise four external and three internal biosecurity risks on a pig farm. 4.3 Explain the potential effect of poor biosecurity on a pig farm. 	 M.1 Develop a biosecurity plan to minimise the risk of disease entry and spread on a given pig farm. 4.D.1 Evaluate the consequences of failing to implement the biosecurity plan developed in AC 4.M.1 on the pig business. 				
Assessment Guidance The following assessment metho covered.	Assessment Guidance The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully					
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content				
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion				
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners practise and apply skills and knowledge					
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary				
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests				



Title	Advanced Pig Management Systems			
Level	Three			
Credit Value	10			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60			
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF365			
Unit Reference No	K/618/6940			
production including the role of the	unit will enable the learner to understand advanced management systems in pig of these systems in controlling the internal environment and emissions from pig housing, weaners and finishers and the benefits and impact of using advanced performance ws and pigs.			
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction	
 Understand the importance and benefits of advanced management systems in pig production. 	 1.1. Summarise the importance of advanced management systems in pig production. 1.2. Summarise using examples where advanced management systems can be used in pig production. 1.3. Summarise the benefits of using one of the advanced management systems identified in A.C.1.2 in terms of: a) performance b) health and welfare 			

			advanced management systems identified in A.C.1.2 in terms of: a) performance b) health and welfare c) labour input				
2.	Understand advanced systems for controlling the internal environment and emissions from pig housing.	2.1.	systems for internal environmental control and regulating emissions in pig housing.	2.M.1	Review the current systems used for controlling the internal environment and emissions on a given pig farm and recommend two advanced systems that may be implemented.	2.D.1	Conduct a cost benefit analysis of one of the recommended systems identified in AC 2.M.1.
3.	Understand advanced pig nutrition and feeding systems.	3.1. 3.2. 3.3.	techniques that can be used in pig nutrition. Explain two advanced systems that can be used for feeding sows and pigs.	3.M.1	Evaluate the impact of one of the identified advanced nutrition techniques or feeding systems identified in AC 3.1 and 3.2 on a given pig farm in terms of: a) health and welfare b) performance	3.D.1	Conduct a cost benefit analysis of the advanced nutrition technique or feeding system identified in AC 3.M.1.



4. Understand advanced systems for monitoring and analysing sow and pig performance.	 4.1. Summarise the benefits of using advanced systems for monitoring and analysing sow and pig performance. 4.2. Explain two decision support tools for advanced analysis and monitoring in terms of performance. 4.3. Summarise additional input data required and output information available for one decision support tool identified in AC 4.2. 	1.1 Evaluate the physical and financial impact of the additional information identified in AC 4.3 for a given pig farm.	4.D.1 Evaluate the potential to improve sow and pig performance on a given farm by adopting advanced analysis and monitoring.
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment metho covered.	d/s may be used to ensure all learni	ng outcomes and assess	sment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/writt Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observat Record of discussio	tion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tuto or by learners, to enable learners practise and apply skills and knowledge		
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Learner log/diary	
E-assessment	The use of information technology	/ Electronic portfolio	



工業	Creasiand Draduction								
Title Level	Grassland Production Three								
Credit Value	20								
Guided Learning Hours	120								
(GLH)									
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF359								
Unit Reference No	M/618/6910								
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand how to produce, utilise and conserve grass									
efficiently.									
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria						
	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction						
 Understand the principles of grass biology, grass growth and different species characteristics. 	 1.1. Explain the biology of grass growth. 1.2. Summarise the agronomic characteristics of three main grass species and two clover species. 1.3. Explain the agronomic characteristics of five main grassland weeds. 1.4. Explain the factors which impact on grass production. 	1.M.1 Critically compare for a given grass production system the suitability of a ryegrass only sward with a sward containing legumes.							
 Understand the principles and practices of sward improvement. 	 2.1. Evaluate the composition of a given sward identifying possible areas for improvement. 2.2. Explain three methods of sward improvement. 2.3. Summarise the characteristics of different grass varieties and their suitability for sward improvement on a given site. 2.4. Explain how grass variety information may be used to develop suitable seed mixtures. 	 2.M.1 Compare and contrast two of the sward improvement methods from AC 2.2 to include: a) site b) management c) timings d) costs 	2.D.1 Develop and justify a sward improvement plan to include method of sward improvement and seeds mixture						
3. Understand soil types, condition and nutrient management planning.	 3.1. Explain factors which influence the nutritional characteristics of selected soils. 3.2. Explain how to carry out soil sampling in order to obtain a representative sample. 3.3. Interpret soil analysis results and calculate the nutrient requirement for a given grassland area. 3.4. Quantify the organic and chemical nutrients including application timings needed to meet the nutrient requirements identified in AC 3.3. 	 3.M.1 Evaluate how the following can influence grass growth whilst minimising environmental impact: a) slurry application to include method and timing b) farmyard manure application and timing c) fertiliser type and timing 	 3.D.1 Develop a nutrient management plan for a given crop and field, to include rates and timing of: a) organic fertilisers b) inorganic fertilisers c) lime applications 						



that co sward deterio evalua	ntribute to pration and 4.2 te soil ge and the of soil 4.3 iction. 4.4	 Explain the factors that contribute to sward deterioration. Differentiate between soil compaction and poor soil drainage. Distinguish between the main soil drainage systems. Explain two methods for each of the following in order to alleviate: a) soil compaction b) poor soil drainage Carry out an assessment of soil drainage and compaction in a given area. 	4.M.1	Evaluate, for a given site the most effective methods identified in AC 4.4.	4.D.1	Develop and justify a land improvement programme for a given site to include an evaluation of the financial margins.
5. Be able evalua quality quantit	te grass and y. 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5	 Explain the principles underpinning grazing ryegrass at the three leaf stage. Explain how grass nutrient value changes with grass growth. Explain the balance between grass quality and grass quantity. Measure and record grass covers in a given area. Explain grassland management options required for the following: a) grass deficit b) grass surplus Explain grassland management tools available to aid decision making. 	5.M.1	Explain the impact of total grass yield, utilisation and quality on given animal performance. Evaluate two management decisions in response to grass covers in AC 5.4	5.D.1	Produce a grass wedge for a given grazing platform and evaluate for optimisation.
6. Unders grazing	g systems. 6.2	 Explain the following grazing systems: a) set grazing b) rotational grazing c) zero grazing Explain the advantages and disadvantages of the grazing systems identified in AC 6.1 for at least two livestock enterprises. Explain the grazing infrastructure options available to improve grassland management. 		Compare and contrast the pre and post grazing targets required for at least two grazing systems and livestock enterprises. Evaluate how grazing infrastructure may be used to optimise grass yield and quality.	6.D.1	Design and justify a rotational grazing plan for a livestock group on a given area of land.
produc conser princip	les involved 7.2 ing quality silage. 7.3		7.M.1	· · · · · ·		



8. Understand the management of feeding grass silage.	7.6. 7.7. 8.1. 8.2. 8.3. 8.4. 8.5.	spring may influence silage quality and yield. Explain how harvesting techniques may influence both silage quality and quantity. Summarise the processes for storing conserved grass including: a) filling and sealing of silos b) making round bales c) effluent control Summarise products which aid grass silage fermentation. Explain five key parameters used to determine silage quality in a silage analysis. Classify silage quality parameters in order to determine suitability for different livestock. Calculate the quantity of silage available on a given farm taking into account the impact of dry matter. Calculate the feed requirements for different livestock on a given farm. Explain how to reduce grass silage losses when feeding.	silage livesto	t of different qualities on	8.D.1 Develop and justify a winter feeding plan for a given group of livestock detailing daily silage requirements and supplementation as required.
Assessment Guidance					
The following assessme covered.	nt met	hod/s may be used to ensure all I	earning outcon	nes and asse	ssment criteria are fully
Assessment Method		Definition		Possible C	ontent
Portfolio of evidence		A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomesLearner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussionOR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the courseRecord of discussion		/diary bservation	
Practical demonstration/assignme	ent	A practical demonstration of a sl selected by the tutor or by learner learners to practise and apply sk knowledge	ers, to enable Learner notes/written work		
Coursework		Research or projects that count learner's final outcome and dem skills and/or knowledge gained t the course	onstrate the	Record of o Learner note Tutor notes/ Learner log/	es/written work /record
E-assessment		The use of information technolog learners' work	gy to assess	Electronic p E-tests	



T at a	One of the stimulture Day does	tion and thick and a			
Title Level	Crop and Horticulture Production and Husbandry Three				
Credit value	10				
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60				
OCN NI Unit Code CBF366					
Unit Reference No	M/618/6941				
Unit purpose and aim(s): This un					
crop types grown in Northern Irel					
They will understand the skills rea	Assessment Criteria	and the post-harvest mar Assessment Criteria =	Assessment Criteria		
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	Merit	= Distinction		
 Be aware of the main crop types grown in Northern Ireland and their significance. 	 1.1. Summarise the main crop types grown in NI including areas and total value of each crop type. 1.2. Explain the reasons why the crop types identified in A.C 1.1 are grown in NI. 1.3. Explain the end uses of the main crop types identified in A.C 1.1. 	1.M.1 Review changes over a given time period for one crop grown in NI to include areas, values and markets.	 1.D.1 Analyse factors that have driven the changes for the crop reviewed in A.C 1.M.1. 1.D.2 Evaluate the future potential for the crop identified in AC 1.D.1. 		
 Understand the main markets, supply chains and specifications for crops grown in NI. 	 2.1. Explain the main markets for three crops grown in NI. 2.2. Explain the supply chain for one crop identified in AC 2.1. 2.3. Explain three specifications used to assess quality for the supply chain identified in AC 2.2. 	2.M.1 Evaluate the implications of failing to meet specifications on end use for the crop identified in AC 2.2.			
3. Understand the requirements for successful crop establishment and growth.	 3.1. Explain the importance of environmental conditions on successful crop establishment and growth. 3.2. Explain four growing medium requirements for successful establishment and growth of a crop. 3.3. Explain at least three key steps in establishing a given crop. 	3.M.1 Evaluate the role of successful crop establishment on optimising crop output.	3.D.1 Evaluate three management practices that can be implemented to improve growing medium conditions for the successful establishment and growth of a given crop.		
 Understand the harvest and post-harvest management of crops. 	 4.1. Explain, for three given crops, the different stages in their life cycle at which they can be harvested. 4.2. Summarise the indicators of harvest 	4.M.1 Summarise the agronomic or business factors that influence time of harvest for the crop identified in AC 4.1.			



	 readiness for one of the three crops identified in AC 4.1. 4.3. Summarise the post- harvest management of one of the three crops identified in AC 4.1. 4.4. Explain the impact of the supply chain on the post-harvest management of one of the crops identified in AC 4.1. 	
Assessment Guidance		
The following assessment me covered.	ethod/s may be used to ensure all learning outco	mes and assessment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Integrated Pest Management				
Level	Three				
Credit value	10 60				
Guided Learning Hours (GLH) OCN NI Unit Code	60 CBF367				
Unit Reference No	T/618/6942				
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit		erstand the principles of Inte	egrated Pest Management		
(IPM) in crops and its potential im	pact on decision making relati	ng to interventions in weed,	pest and disease control		
and prevention. Learners will also	understand the importance of	f using economic thresholds	for treatment		
interventions and the use of cultur					
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction		
 Understand the principles and processes involved in IPM. 	 1.1. Explain the principles of IPM. 1.2. Summarise the steps in the crop protection decision-making pyramid. 1.3. Explain why the IPM decision process is continuous. 1.4. Explain how evaluation of an action is a key part of the IPM process. 	1.M.1 Analyse factors that have influenced the development of IPM principles.	1.D.1 Compare and contrast the application of IPM principles with conventional pest management in terms of environmental, financial and management decisions.		
2. Understand pest management control measures for crop protection within an IPM Programme.	 2.1. Summarise two management pest control measures for identified crops for each of the following a) preventative b) mechanical c) biological 2.2. Explain how Plant Protection Products (PPP)s can be used within an IPM programme. 	2.M.1 Evaluate, with at least two examples, how enhancing biodiversity may impact on pest management .			
3. Understand the application of Economic Injury Levels and Economic Treatment Thresholds.	 3.1. Explain what is meant by the following terms in relation to crop protection: a) Economic Treatment Threshold b) Economic Injury Level 3.2. Explain how monitoring pest populations impacts on treatment decisions. 3.3. Explain how environmental considerations may impact on the treatment of a crop pest.	3.M.1 Analyse the interrelationship between Economic Treatment Threshold and Economic Injury Level for a given crop pest.			



 Understand the role of IP in PPP resistance management. 	by PPP resistance resis and its impact for a PPP selected cropping deve	ain how tance to s has eloped for a n crop pest.4.D.1 Develop with justification an IPM plan to 		
The following assessment me covered.	thod/s may be used to ensure all learning outco	omes and assessment criteria are fully		
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content		
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion		
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log		
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary		
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests		



Title	Specialist Machinery Operations				
Level	Three				
Credit Value	10				
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60				
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF368				
Unit Reference No	A/618/6943				
Unit purpose and aim(s): This un		nderstand the purpose a	nd operation of		
machinery specific to an arable o					
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction		
 Understand the purpose, operation and maintenance of growing medium preparation equipment. 	 1.1. Explain the purpose of machinery used in the preparation of growing medium for a given crop. 1.2. Summarise the working principles and operation of three different types of cultivators. 1.3. Explain the significance of consolidation in growing medium preparation. 1.4. Explain maintenance tasks that should be undertaken on the three cultivators detailed in AC 1.2. 	1.M.1 Critically evaluate the suitability of two given cultivators for a given crop.	1.D.1 Develop a cultivation plan to establish a seed bed for a given crop.		
2. Understand the purpose, operation and maintenance of planting equipment.	 2.1. Explain the purpose of machinery used in the planting of a given crop. 2.2. Summarise the working principles and operation of two different types of planting equipment for a given crop. 2.3. Explain the importance of calibration of planting equipment. 2.4. Explain maintenance tasks that should be undertaken on the planting equipment detailed in AC 2.2. 	2.M.1 Critically evaluate the suitability of two given items of planting equipment for a given situation.			



3.	Understand the purpose, operation and maintenance of Plant Protection Product (PPP) and fertiliser application equipment.	3.2. 3.3.	Explain the purpose and working principles of two types of PPP spray application equipment. Explain the importance of maintenance and calibration of a crop sprayer. Explain the purpose and working principles of two types of fertiliser application equipment. Explain the importance of maintenance and calibration of fertiliser application equipment.	3.M.1	Critically evaluate the suitability of two nozzle types for a given situation.	3.D.1	Evaluate, for a given item of spray or fertiliser application equipment, the potential of new technology to improve accuracy of application.
4.	Understand the purpose, operation and maintenance of harvesting and post-harvest handling equipment.	4.2.4.3.4.4.	Explain the purpose of a chosen crop harvester. Explain the working principles and operation of the harvester chosen in AC.4.1. Explain the purpose of a given type of crop handling equipment used for post-harvest of a given crop. Explain the working principles and operation of the crop handling equipment in AC 4.3. Explain the importance of maintenance of the harvester identified in AC 4.1.	4.M.1	Evaluate how settings for a given item of harvesting or crop handling equipment can be adjusted to optimise crop quality and efficiency.	4.D.1	For a given crop, develop a plan including targets, to monitor harvester performance in order to increase efficiency and improve crop quality.



Assessment Guidance

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Harvesting and Storage of Horticultural Crops
Level	Three
Credit value	10
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF373
Unit Reference No	R/618/6950
Unit purpose and aim(s):	

This unit will enable the learner to understand the practical aspects of harvesting, pre harvest treatments, assessment of harvest timing, harvesting methods, minimising losses and damage, sampling procedures, storage and meeting market requirements.

Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction
 Understand the pre- harvest management factors that impact on the harvesting of crops. 	 1.1. Summarise the differences between physiological and horticultural maturity. 1.2. Summarise the parameters indicating suitability of two different horticultural crops for harvesting to meet market specifications. 1.3. Summarise three production factors that can affect horticulture crop quality. 1.4. Explain three risks associated with the delayed harvest of a horticultural crop. 1.5. Explain the terms maturation, ripening and senescence of a fresh produce horticultural crop. 	1.M.1 Evaluate the influence of the end market on pre-harvest management of a given horticultural crop.	
 Understand the harvesting, collection and packaging processes for horticultural crops. 	 2.1. Summarise the equipment used in the harvesting, collection, weighing and grading of a given horticultural crop. 2.2. Explain importance of good hygiene practices when harvesting fresh produce and the potential impact on human health. 2.3. Summarise three packaging options for in-field packing of a given horticultural crop. 	2.M.1 Evaluate three management practices that may be implemented at harvest to minimise microbial contamination.	2.D.1 Develop a harvesting plan to minimise damage and microbial contamination to a given horticultural crop during harvesting.



 Understand the post- harvest treatment of horticultural crops in preparation for storage. 	 3.1. Explain the importance of assessing crop quality prior to storage. 3.2. Explain the importance of maintaining strict post-harvest hygiene for fresh produce. 3.3. Summarise the process of curing root vegetables to maintain quality. 	3.M.1 Evaluate options that may be implemented post-harvest to maintain hygiene in a given fresh product.	
 Understand the storage and packaging of horticultural crops. 	 4.1. Explain two purposes of storage for horticultural crops. 4.2. Summarise health and safety considerations when preparing, loading and monitoring stores. 4.3. Explain three checks which should be carried out on a store prior to use. 4.4. Explain the differences between controlled atmosphere (CA) and modified atmosphere (MA) packaging. 4.5. Explain the importance of temperature and humidity on the storage of horticulture crops. 4.6. Explain how a store pest and a spoilage disease should be monitored in a stored crop. 	 4.M.1 Evaluate the storage methods for a given horticultural crop, selecting and justifying preferred option. 4.M.2 Evaluate renewable packaging options for a given horticultural crop. 	 4.D.1 Develop a store management plan for a given horticultural crop in order to maintain crop quality for a market including the following: a) pre and post-harvest operations b) monitoring during storage



Assessment Guidance

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Combinable Crop Production		
Level	Three		
Credit value	20		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	120		
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF369		
Unit Reference No	F/618/6944		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit		inderstand the principles of	f combinable crop
production from crop selection, sit			
of harvest.		car management of combin	
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction
 Understand the principles of crop rotations in combinable crops including Gross Margins. 	 1.1. Explain the purpose of crop rotation including three benefits for crop production. 1.2. Summarise the importance of having at least three different crop types in a rotation. 1.3. Explain the role of catch crops in a rotation. 1.4. Explain two suitable crop rotations. 1.5. Produce Calculate a Gross Margin for two specified combinable crops. 	1.M.1 Analyse the interactions of the crops in one of the crop rotations identified in AC 1.4.	1.D.1 Compare and contrast the Gross Margins produced in AC 1.5 identifying three potential areas for improvement.
2. Understand the factors involved in cultivar selection of combinable crops in Northern Ireland (NI).	 2.1. Explain how NI growing conditions will influence cultivar choice for combinable crops. 2.2. Explain how market requirements can influence cultivar selection of two combinable crops. 2.3. Justify, giving three reasons, the selection of a variety for a given crop. 2.4. Explain seed classification for a selected crop. 	2.M.1 Explain, for a selected crop, the advantages and disadvantages of using hybrid cultivars.	2.D.1 Evaluate the potential use of alternative breeding techniques in combinable crop production.
 Understand the process of producing a Nutrient Management and Lodging Control plan for combinable crops. 	 3.1. Summarise methods of assessing crop nutritional needs. 3.2. Explain how to access information required to produce a crop nutrient plan. 3.3. Interpret the results of a soil analysis. 3.4. Explain the causes and controls of lodging which affect combinable crops. 	3.M.1 Evaluate the role of leaf tissue and grain analysis in the nutritional management of combinable crops.	3.D.1 Develop a nutrient management plan for a specified crop and field, to include rates and timing of organic, inorganic fertilisers and lime applications.



4.	Understand the impact of site selection in growing combinable crops in NI.	 4.1. Explain how field location can influence crop choice and management. 4.2. Explain how soil type can influence crop choice and management. 4.3. Explain how topography, aspect and altitude can affect crop management and growth. 4.4. Summarise how NI farm structures impact on crop management. 	4.M.1 Analyse how geography and climate has influenced the development of the combinable crops sector in NI.	
5.	Understand the methods associated with crop establishment and appropriate measures.	 5.1. Summarise three establishment methods of a combinable crop. 5.2. Summarise three measures of seed quality for a given combinable crop. 5.3. Explain how the planting date impacts decision making for establishing combinable crops 5.4. Calculate the seed rate for a given combinable crop. 	5.M.1 Compare and contrast the crop establishment methods identified in AC 5.1 indicating your preferred option including: a) costs b) suitability for NI conditions c) timeliness d) labour	5.D.1 Evaluate, for the establishment method selected in AC 5.M.1, its long term impact on environment, soil health, weed and pest control.
6.	Understand the assessment of crop establishment and growth.	 6.1. Explain how combinable crop establishment can be assessed post emergence. 6.2. Explain the key components of yield formation in a combinable crop. 6.3. Summarise three key performance targets in optimising yield for a given combinable crop 6.4. Explain how growth stage is assessed for a chosen combinable crop. 	6.M.1 Evaluate the use of canopy management as a benchmark to aid combinable crop management for the crop identified in AC 6.3.	
7.	Understand the management of combinable crop disease.	 7.1. Explain the impact of three diseases for a selected combinable crop. 7.2. Develop a control plan for one disease identified in AC 7.1. 7.3. Explain the importance of timing in the treatment of the disease identified in AC 7.2. 	7.M.1 Justify the control plan and any fungicides suggested in AC 7.2.	



 Understand the management of combinable crop pests. 	 8.1. Explain the impact of three main pests for a selected combinable crop. 8.2. Develop a control plan for one pest identified in AC 8.1. 8.3. Explain the importance of timing in the treatment of the pest identified in AC 8.2. 	Justify the control plan and methods used in AC 8.2	
9. Understand the management of weeds in combinable crops.	 three main weeds on a selected combinable crop. 9.2. Develop a control plan for one weed identified in AC 9.1. 9.3. Explain the importance of timing in treatment of the weed identified in AC 9.2. 	Justify the control plan and methods used in AC 9.2.	
10. Be able to undertake key assessment and calculations associated with combinable crop production.	 10.1. Demonstrate the identification of the following in relation to combinable crops: a) four weeds b) four diseases c) four pests 10.2. Demonstrate the identification of three key growth stages of one cereal and one non-cereal combinable crop. 10.3. Demonstrate a plant and tiller count on a given combinable crop. 10.4. Demonstrate a Thousand Grain Weight calculation for seed of a given combinable crop. 		
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment met covered.	hod/s may be used to ensure all learning	outcomes and asse	essment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible C	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing wo undertaken to be assessed as evidence meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing wo that shows the learner's progression thro the course	to Learner log, Peer notes Record of o rk Record of d	bservation



Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Potato Production		
Level	Three		
Credit value	20		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	120		
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF370		
Unit Reference No	R/618/6947		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This un		rstand the principles of po	tato crop production from
crop selection, siting and establis			
provides the learner with practica			
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria
	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction
 Understand crop rotations in potato production including financial considerations. 	 1.1. Explain the purpose of a crop rotation and three associated benefits. 1.2. Summarise the factors affecting the frequency of potato crops in a rotation. 1.3. Explain the role of catch crops in a rotation. 1.4. Calculate Gross Margins for both an early crop and a main 	1.M.1 Justify the need to control potato volunteers in a potato rotation.	1.D.1 Compare and contrast the Gross Margins calculated in AC 1.4 identifying three possible areas for improvement.
	crop.		
 Understand the factors involved in cultivar selection of potato crops. 	 2.1. Explain how Northern Ireland (NI) growing conditions influence cultivar choice for potato crops. 2.2. Explain how market requirements influence cultivar selection of potato crops. 2.3. Justify, giving three reasons, the selection of a potato variety for a given market. 2.4. Explain seed classification for potatoes. 		
 Understand how to plan the nutrient management of a potato crop. 	 3.1. Summarise methods for assessing crop nutritional needs. 3.2. Explain how to access information to develop a crop nutrient plan. 3.3. Interpret the results of a given soil analysis. 3.4. Explain the role of nutrition in crop senescence. 	 3.M.1 Evaluate the role of leaf petiole analysis in the nutritional management of potato crops. 3.M.2 Summarise the impact of crop nutrition on tuber quality. 	3.D.1 Develop a nutrient management plan for a given potato crop and field, including rates and timing of organic and inorganic fertilisers and lime applications.
 Understand site selection in growing potato crops. 	 4.1. Explain how field location can influence potato crop choice and management. 4.2. Explain how soil type can influence potato 	4.M.1 Analyse how geography and climate have influenced the development of the potato sector in NI.	



		 crop type and management. 4.3. Explain how topography and aspect can affect potato crop management and growth. 4.4. Summarise at least three factors affecting availability of suitable sites for potato production in NI. 		
5.	Understand seed management and establishment of potato crops.	 5.1. Summarise four factors which can affect seed potato quality. 5.2. Summarise the role of physiological ageing of seed in potato production. 5.3. Explain three operations which form part of potato crop establishment. 5.4. Calculate seed rate for a given potato crop. 5.5. Explain how planting date will influence decision making for establishing potato crops. 	differences between physiological and chronological ageing of seed potatoes.	5.D.1 Develop a seed management programme for a given potato crop including seed specification and post-delivery management.
6.	Understand the assessment of potato crop establishment and growth.	 6.1. Explain how potato crop establishment car be assessed post emergence. 6.2. Explain the key components of yield formation in potato crops. 6.3. Summarise three key performance targets in optimising yield of a potato crop. 6.4. Explain how growth stage is assessed for a potato crop. 	vegetative growth can influence yield.	
7.	Understand the management of diseases of potato crops.	 7.1. Explain the impact of three diseases on a potato crop. 7.2. Develop a control plan one of the diseases identified in AC 7.1. 7.3. Explain the importance of timing in the treatment of the control plan identified in AC 7.2. 	7.M.1 Justify the control plan and methods used in AC.7.2.	7.D.1 Evaluate the importance of monitoring disease pressure and blight population in developing a blight control strategy.



 8. Understand the management of pests of potato crops. 9. Understand the management of weeds in potato crops. 10. Be able to carry out the practical skills associated with potato production. 	 8.1. Explain the impact of three main pests on a potato crop. 8.2. Develop a control plan for one pest identified in AC 8.1. 8.3. Explain the importance of timing in the treatment of the pest identified in AC 8.2. 9.1. Explain the impact of three main weeds on a potato crop. 9.2. Develop a treatment plan for weed control in a potato crop. 9.3. Explain the importance of treatment timing in the control plan identified in AC 9.2. 10.1. Carry out the following practical skills associated with potato crop production: a) identification of four weeds b) identification of four weeds c) identification of 	 8.M.1 Justify the control plan and methods used in AC.8.2. 9.M.1 Justify the treatment plan and methods used in AC.9.2. 	
	 four pests a trial dig to assess potato crop yield and size a 50kg tuber count for a sample of seed potatoes a damage assessment on a sample of harvested 		
	potatoes		
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment methor covered.	d/s may be used to ensure all le	earning outcomes and asse	essment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written wo Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	rk



Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Harvesting and Storage of Combinable Crops		
Level	Three		
Credit value	10		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60		
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF371		
Unit Reference No	Y/618/6948		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand the practical aspects of harvesting taking			

Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand the practical aspects of harvesting taking account of pre harvest treatments, assessment of harvest timing, harvesting methods, minimising losses and damage, sampling procedures, meeting market requirements. The learner will also understand the storage requirements of combinable crops, storage methods, store preparation, pest control, monitoring in store.

	Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction
1.	Understand the assessment of crops for harvest and any in field pre-harvest treatments required.	 1.1. Explain, for a given crop the procedure for assessing harvest readiness. 1.2. Explain three risks associated with delayed harvest of a combinable crop. 1.3. Explain the role of preharvest desiccation in Northern Ireland (NI) conditions. 1.4. Explain how the end market may influence preharvest management of crops. 		
2.	Understand the harvesting of combinable crops.	 2.1. Summarise factors affecting the efficient harvesting of combinable crops on NI arable farms including: a) soil conditions b) hygiene c) appropriate timing 2.2. Explain the assessment of grain loss during harvest of combinable crops. 2.3. Explain two methods of dealing with crop residues. 	2.M.1 Explain the importance of machinery hygiene during the harvest process.	2.D.1 Develop a harvesting plan for a given farm to minimise spread of weeds, pest and diseases.
3.	Understand the post- harvest treatment of combinable crops in readiness for storage.	 3.1. Explain the importance of assessing grain quality prior to storage. 3.2. Explain three methods of grain preservation, including target moisture content. 3.3. Explain three techniques used to dry grain. 3.4. Summarise how and why drying parameters may be different depending on crop and end use. 	3.M.1 Evaluate three drying techniques identified in AC 3.3 for a given type of grain.	3.D.1 Summarise for a given farm, factors to be considered when prioritising crops for drying.



 Understand the storage of combinable crops. 	 4.1. Summarise health and safety considerations when preparing, loading and monitoring stores. 4.2. Explain three key checks that should be carried out on a grain store prior to use. 4.3. Identify three grain store pests and explain their impact on the stored crop. 4.4. Summarise two indicators of spoilage in a stored crop and how they should be monitored. 4.5. Summarise three grain store records required for appropriate Quality Assurance Schemes. 	4.M.1Develop a control plan for one of the pests
Assessment Guidance		
The following assessment metho covered.	d/s may be used to ensure all learnir	ng outcomes and assessment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
	Research or projects that count	Record of observation
Coursework	towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course The use of information	Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary Electronic portfolio



Title	Lienvesting and Starseys of Da	hata Creana	
Title Level	Harvesting and Storage of Po Three	lato Grops	
Credit value	10		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60		
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF372		
Unit Reference No	D/618/6949		
Unit purpose and aim(s): This uni		stand the practical accests	of harvesting pro
harvest treatments, assessment of			
procedures, storage and meeting	market requirements	lous, minimising losses a	iu uamage, sampling
	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria
Learning Outcomes	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction
 Understand the assessment of potato crops for harvest and pre-harvest treatments. 	 1.1. Explain the procedure for assessing harvest readiness of a potato crop. 1.2. Explain three risks associated with delayed harvest of a potato crop. 1.3. Explain the role of pre- harvest desiccation or defoliation. 1.4. Explain how the end- market may influence the management of pre-harvest treatment 		
	of a potato crop.		
 Understand the harvesting of potato crops. 	 2.1. Summarise factors affecting the efficient harvesting of potato crops on NI arable farms including: a) soil conditions b) hygiene c) timeliness 2.2. Explain two processes which take place when harvesting a potato crop. 2.3. Explain how to assess damage during the harvest of potato crops. 2.4. Evaluate when damage is likely to occur in the harvesting process how this may be identified. 	2.M.1 Explain the importance of machinery hygiene during the harvesting process.	2.D.1 Develop a harvesting plan for a given farm to minimise spread of weeds, pests and diseases.
 Understand the post- harvest treatment of potato crops and storage options. 	 3.1. Explain the following post-harvest processes: a) drying b) curing c) cooling 3.2. Explain two key factors to be considered when grading a potato crop and the importance of assessing tuber 	3.M.1 Critically compare two types of box store ventilation.	



4. Understand the	 condition prior to storage. 3.3. Explain three types of stores used for potatoes. 3.4. Clarify how and why storage parameters may be different depending on the crop and end use. 4.1. Summarise health and 	4.M.1 Explain the	4.D.1 Develop a store
management of potato store facilities. Assessment Guidance The following assessment method	 safety considerations when preparing, loading and monitoring potato stores. 4.2. Explain three checks which should be carried out on a potato store prior to use. 4.3. Identify three storage diseases of potatoes and explain their possible impact on the stored crop. 4.4. Summarise two key parameters which should be monitored in a stored potato crop 4.5. Summarise three store records required for relevant Quality Assurance Schemes. 	potential impact of condensation on stored potatoes, and how it may be reduced. 4.M.2 Develop a control plan for one of the storage diseases identified in AC 4.3 using Integrated Pest Management (IPM) principles.	management plan to maintain crop quality for a given market, to include pre and post-harvest operations.
covered.		-	
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to b assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through th course	Peer notes Record of observatio Record of discussion	n
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observatio Learner notes/writter Learner log	



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary	
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests	



Title	Ornamental Crop Production					
Level	Three					
Credit value	20					
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	120					
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF374					
Unit Reference No	Y/618/6951					
	Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand the principles of ornamental crop production					
	from crop selection, siting and establishment to practical management of crops up to the point of harvest. The learner					
will also gain practical skills asso						
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria	Assessment Criteria			
4 Understand site coloritien	= Pass	= Merit	= Distinction			
 Understand site selection and growing media for ornamental crops and container grown plants. 	 1.1. Explain how soil and growing media can influence crop growth and management. 1.2. Explain how topography and aspect can affect crop management and growth in field grown ornamentals. 1.3. Summarise the physical and chemical characteristics required in a growing media and soil. 1.4. Explain the reasons for nurseries to use reduced and peat free growing media. 	 1.M.1 Analyse options to improve soil conditions and influence local environmental conditions prior to crop establishment and later growth. 1.M.2 Evaluate the physical and chemical characteristics of two non-peat ingredients that can be used in a reduced peat mix. 	1.D.1 Compare and contrast the economic, technical and marketing differences between field and containerised production.			
2. Understand structures and equipment used in protected ornamental crop production.	 2.1. Summarise the characteristics of four structures commonly used in ornamental crop production. 2.2. Summarise equipment used by growers to optimise the growing environment in one of the structures identified in AC 2.1. 2.3. Summarise environmental controls and monitoring equipment available to growers in one of the structures identified in AC 2.1. 	2.M.1 Compare and contrast two structures used in protected ornamental crop production and identify the recommended crops for each.				



3.	Understand the principles of propagation for ornamental crops.	3.2.	Explain the terms vegetative propagation and seed propagation and the benefits associated with each. Explain the physiological processes and associated environmental conditions required for vegetative and seed propagation. Summarise treatments and equipment used in seed and vegetative propagation.	3.M.1	Develop a propagation schedule for a selected ornamental crop including: a) timings b) treatments c) environmental conditions		
4.	Understand how water quality and irrigation techniques can influence plant growth and quality in ornamental crop production.	4.2.4.3.4.4.4.5.	Summarise the importance of water quality in container- grown ornamental crops. Explain the impact of electro-conductivity (EC) on plant growth. Explain the relationship between growing media pH and alkalinity. Summarise three options to improve water quality. Summarise three irrigation techniques used in container grown plants. Summarise two irrigation techniques used in soil-grown ornamental crops.	4.M.1	Evaluate two options to track changes in growing media pH and EC including equipment and sampling technique.	4.D.1	Evaluate current irrigation techniques used on a given nursery identifying possible areas for improvement.
5.	Understand crop nutrition management.	5.3.		5.M.1	Evaluate the role of leaf tissue in the nutritional management of a given crop.	5.D.1	Develop a nutrient management plan for a given crop and field or growing media including rates and timing of the following where applicable a) organic fertilisers b) inorganic fertilisers c) lime applications



Understand diseases in ornamental crops.	6.2. 6.3.	Summarise the symptoms and impact of three diseases for a given crop. Summarise the key aspects of a control plan for one of the diseases identified in AC 6.1. Explain the importance of timing in the treatment of the disease identified in AC 6.2. Explain what is meant by the term Resistance in disease control.	6.M.1	Explain for one given disease of a crop how it may become resistant to treatment.	6.D.1	Evaluate a strategy to manage resistance build- up to the disease identified in AC 6.M.1.
Understand pests in ornamental crops.	7.2. 7.3.	Explain the effects of three main pests on crops. Summarise the key aspects of a treatment plan for one pest identified in AC 7.1. Explain the importance on timing in the treatment of the pest identified in AC 7.2. Explain what is meant by the term Resistance in pest control.	7.M.1	Explain for one given pest of an ornamental crop how it may become resistant to treatment.	7.D.1	Evaluate a strategy to manage resistance build- up in the pest identified in AC 7.M.1, evaluate a strategy to manage resistance build- up.
Understand weeds in ornamental crops.	8.3.		8.M.1	Explain, for one given weed of an ornamental crop, how it may become resistant to treatment.	8.D.1	Evaluate a strategy to manage resistance build- up in one of the weeds identified in AC 8.M.1.



9. Be able to carry out activities associated with ornamental crop production.	 9.1. Undertake the identification of the following in relation to ornamental crops: a) four weeds b) four diseases c) four pests 9.2. Calibrate a water-driven nutrient dosing machine. 	
Assessment Guidance		
The following assessment meth covered.	od/s may be used to ensure all lea	rning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests



Title	Soft Fruit Production
Level	Three
Credit value	20
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	120
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF375
Unit Reference No	H/618/6953

Unit purpose and aim(s): This unit will enable the learner to understand the principles of soft fruit production from crop selection, siting and establishment to practical management of crops up to the point of harvest. The learner will also perform practical skills associated with soft fruit production.

	Learning Outcomes	Aled with solt fruit production. Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction
1.	Understand site and growing medium selection in soft fruit.	 1.1. Explain how soil and growing media can influence crop growth and the management of soft fruit. 1.2. Explain how topography and aspect can affect crop management and growth in field grown soft fruit. 1.3. Summarise the physical and chemical characteristics required in a growing medium for soft fruit. 1.4. Explain the reasons behind increased use of reduced and peat free growing media. 1.5. Explain the purpose of a crop rotation and three associated benefits for crop production in field grown crops. 	 1.M.1 Analyse options to improve soil conditions and local environmental conditions prior to crop establishment and later growth. 1.M.2 Evaluate the physical and chemical characteristics of two non-peat ingredients that may be used in a reduced peat mix. 	1.D.1 Evaluate current use of renewable soil ameliorants or use of peat alternatives in growing media mixes and make recommendations for alternatives to meet guidelines.
2.	Understand structures and equipment used in soft fruit crop production.	 2.1. Summarise three support structures used in soft fruit production. 2.2. Summarise three protected structures used in soft fruit production. 2.3. Summarise equipment used by growers to optimise the growing environment in one of the protected structures identified in AC2.2. 	2.M.1 Compare and contrast two structures used in the production of a given soft fruit crop.	



 Understand establishment and crop 	 2.4. Summarise the environmental controls and monitoring equipment that may be used in one of the protected structures identified in AC2.2. 3.1. Summarise the type of propagation 	3.M.1 Develop a cropping schedule	
maintenance in soft fruit production.	 material available for a given crop. 3.2. Explain how cropping strategy and market can influence choice of cultivar and propagation material. 3.3. Summarise the main strategies taken to establish the given crop identified in AC 3.1 in soil or containers. 3.4. Summarise the pruning requirements for given crop to maintain plant health and improve productivity. 3.5. Summarise the pollination requirements for a given crop and options to ensure pollination. 	for a given soft fruit crop to include: a) timings b) treatments c) environmental conditions	
 Understand how water quality and irrigation techniques can impact on plant growth and quality in soft fruit crop production. 	 4.1. Summarise the importance of water quality in soft fruit production. 4.2. Explain the impact of electro-conductivity (EC) on plant growth. 4.3. Explain the relationship between growing media pH and alkalinity. 4.4. Summarise three options to improve water quality. 4.5. Summarise three irrigation techniques used in container grown soft fruit crops. 4.6. Summarise two irrigation techniques used in soil grown soft fruit crops. 	 4.M.1 Evaluate two options to track changes in growing media pH and EC including equipment and sampling techniques. 4.M.2 Evaluate two techniques to establish the uniformity of irrigation in a given crop or cropping environment. 	4.D.1 Evaluate irrigation techniques used in a given nursery identifying possible areas for improvement.



		4.7.	Evaluate options to monitor moisture levels on soils and growing media.				
5.	Understand the factors involved in cultivar selection of soft fruit crops in Northern Ireland (NI).	5.2. 5.3.	Explain how cultivar selection is critical in season extension. Explain how market requirements can influence cultivar selection of soft fruit. Explain how disease pressures can influence cultivar selection. Justify giving two reasons the selection of a variety for a given crop.	5.M.1	Explain the potential of hybrid berries in NI including: a) market potential b) ease of cultivation c) yield d) diseases		
6.	Understand how to plan the nutrition management for soft fruit crops.	6.2. 6.3.	Summarise methods of assessing crop nutritional needs. Explain how to access information to develop a crop nutrient plan. Interpret the results of a given soil growing media analysis. Explain the impact of soil or growing media pH on the nutritional status in soft fruit.	6.M.1	Evaluate the role of leaf tissue in the nutritional management of a given soft fruit.	6.D.1	Develop a nutrient management plan for a given crop and given field or growing media including rates and timing of organic, inorganic fertilisers and lime applications.
7.	Understand the management of diseases in soft fruit crops.	7.2. 7.3. 7.4.	Summarise the symptoms and impact of three diseases for a given crop. Develop a control plan for one of the diseases identified in A.C.7.1. Explain the importance of timing in the treatment of the disease identified in AC 7.2. Explain what is meant by resistance in disease control.		Explain how one given soft fruit crop disease identified in AC 7.1 may become resistant to treatment.	7.D.1	Analyse a strategy to manage resistance build up of the soft fruit crop disease identified in AC 7.M.1.
8.	Understand the management of pests of soft fruit crops.	8.2.	Explain the impacts of three main pests on a soft fruit crop. Develop a treatment plan for one pest identified in AC 8.1. Explain the importance of timing in the treatment of the pest identified in AC 8.2.	8.M.1	Explain how one given soft fruit crop pest identified in AC 8.1 may become resistant to treatment.	8.D.1	Analyse a strategy to manage resistance build-up of the soft fruit crop pest identified in AC 8.M.1.



	8.4. Explain what is meant by the term resistance in pest control.		
9. Understand the management of weeds in soft fruit crops.	 9.1. Explain the impact of two main weeds on soft fruit crops. 9.2. Develop a treatment plan for one weed identified in AC.9.1. 9.3. Explain the importance of timing in the treatment of the weed identified in AC.9.2. 9.4. Explain what is meant by the term "resistance" in weed control. 	9.M.1 Explain how one given soft fruit crop weed identified in AC 9.1 may become resistant to treatment.	9.D.1 Analyse a strategy to manage resistance build up of the soft fruit crop weed identified in AC 9.M.1.
10. Be able to carry out the practical skills associated with soft fruit production.	 10.1. Carry out the following practical skills associated with soft fruit production: a) identification of four weeds b) identification of four diseases c) identification of four pests d) calibration of a water driven nutrient dosing machine 		
Assessment Guidance			
The following assessment met covered.	thod/s may be used to ensure a	all learning outcomes and as	sessment criteria are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content	
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log	



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests





Optional units (for all Enterprises)

Only one unit to be completed

Title	Human Resource Management		
Level	Three		
Credit value	10		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60		
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF376		
Unit Reference No	K/618/6954		
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This un based business.	it will enable the learner to unders		
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction
 Understand human resource management for a land-based business. 	 1.1. Explain why human resource planning is important to a land- based business including internal and external factors. 1.2. Summarise four legal responsibilities of an employer to their employees including health, safety and welfare. 1.3. Summarise recruitment and selection. procedures for a given land-based business 1.4. Summarise the content of contract of employment. 	1.M.1 Evaluate how employment legislation may impact on a land-based business.	1.D.1 Develop an employee employment contract for a given land- based business.
2. Be able to plan for labour requirements within a land- based business.	 2.1. Summarise the labour and skill requirements within a given land- based business. 2.2. Explain at least two labour saving options within a given land- based business. 2.3. Summarise how to plan the labour requirement efficiently within a given land-based business. 2.4. Explain how to plan employee resource in order to meet workload requirement. 2.5. Summarise the training and development requirements for employees in a given land-based business. 2.6. Develop a Standard Operating Procedure for a specific task in a given land-based business. 	2.M.1 Develop a labour management plan to include: a) labour saving options b) work-load planning c) employee resource planning	2.D.1 Create, implement and evaluate a training and development plan for a group of employees in a given land- based business.



 Understand how to promote employee motivation, teamwork, problem solving and conflict resolution. 	 3.1. Develop a communication plan for a given land-based business. 3.2. Explain factors that can impact on employees' motivation in a land-based business. 3.3. Explain two approaches to encourage teamwork, problem solving and conflict resolution. 	3.M.1 Evaluate how effective management skills may assist with employee retention.	3.D.1 Develop a plan to promote employee motivation for given posts in the land-based business identified in AC 3.1.
4. Understand performance management and the contribution of employees to achieving key business performance indicators.	 4.1. Explain how to promote employee co-operation in a land-based business. 4.2. Explain the importance of employee performance management. 4.3. Explain at least two methods for measuring and managing employee performance of an employee using the appraisal process. 	4.M.1 Explain how employees contributions may impact on key business performance indicators.	
	od/s may be used to ensure all learn	ning outcomes and asses	ssment criteria are fully
	od/s may be used to ensure all learn	ning outcomes and asses	ssment criteria are fully
The following assessment metho covered.		Possible Content Learner notes/written Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	n work
The following assessment metho covered. Assessment Method	DefinitionA collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the courseA practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply	Possible Content Learner notes/written Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion	n work
The following assessment metho covered. Assessment Method Portfolio of evidence Practical	DefinitionA collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the courseA practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable	Possible Content Learner notes/written Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion Record of observation Learner notes/written Learner notes/written Learner notes/written Learner notes/written Learner log Record of observation Learner log Record of observation Learner log Tutor notes/written	n n work



T .0		0.1					
Title Level		Safe Thre	Handling and Application	of Pest	icides using Vehicle	wounte	a sprayers
Credit Valu		10	C				
	arning Hours (GLH)	60					
OCN NI Un		CBF377					
Unit Refere		M/618/6955					
			enable the learner to unde	erstand	the safe handling an	d use o	f pesticides and
the safe an	id competent operatio		ehicle mounted sprayers.				
Learn	ning Outcomes		Assessment Criteria = Pass	Ass	essment Criteria = Merit		essment Criteria = Distinction
storage	stand safe handling, e and legislative ements for use of des.	1.2. 1.3. 1.4.	Summarise the legislative requirements and codes of practice relating to the use of pesticides. Summarise how to minimise the risk of human contamination. Explain how to store and transport pesticides safely. Explain how to manage and dispose of surplus pesticide and waste materials safely. Explain the record keeping requirements for the storage and use	1.M.1	Evaluate the suitability of a given store for different pesticides.		
produc associa	stand pesticide ct labelling, lated environmental s and risks to be lered.	2.2. 2.3.	of pesticides. Interpret a given pesticide product information leaflet. Explain how to minimise the risk of environmental contamination for a given pesticide. Explain the emergency procedures to be implemented in the event of contamination from a given pesticide. Explain the environmental factors to be considered in the safe mixing and application of a given pesticide.	2.M.1	Evaluate the environmental impact of not following the recommendations in relation to pesticide spray rate and spraying conditions.	2.D.1	Develop and justify a pesticide control plan for a given crop to minimise environmental impact.
importa correct and ho prepar	stand the ance of using the t amount of product by to correctly re and use a tractor ed sprayer for ng.		Explain the reasons for applying the correct amount of pesticide to a crop. Perform pre-use checks to the prime mover and pesticide sprayer and identify applicator components and controls.	3.M.1	Evaluate how settings for a sprayer can be adjusted to optimise application rate and efficiency of operation.		



4. Understand how to	 3.3. Calibrate the pesticide sprayer and record appropriate data. 3.4. Measure and calculate the area, quantities of pesticide and water required for a certain area to be sprayed and prepare sprayer for use. 4.1. Explain the importance 	4.M.1 Evaluate the	4.D.1 Develop a
correctly apply pesticides and the need for safe disposal of waste product.	 of correct application of pesticide. 4.2. Perform pesticide application procedures safely and accurately. 4.3. Complete a treatment record for a treated crop. 4.4. Explain how to manage surplus pesticide safely. 4.5. Explain how to dispose of residual pesticide in the sprayer tank safely. 4.6. Explain how to clean and decontaminate sprayers and prime movers. 4.7. Explain the storage requirements for the sprayer. 	potential risks to the operator of incorrect application and disposal of pesticide.	Standard Operating Procedure for the application of a given pesticide to include: a) the operator b) machinery and equipment
Assessment Guidance The following assessment metho covered.	od/s may be used to ensure all l	earning outcomes and asses	ssment criteria are fully

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests





Title	Safe Handling and Application	on of Pesticides Using Knaps	sack Sprayers
Level	Three		
Credit Value	10		
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60		
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF378		
Unit Reference No	A/618/6957		
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This un		erstand the safe handling ar	nd use of pesticides and
the safe and competent operatio		Accessory Oritoria	
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction
 Understand safe handling, storage and legislative requirements for use of pesticides. 	 Summarise the legislative requirements and codes of practice relating to the use of pesticides. Summarise how to minimise the risk of human contamination. Explain how to store and transport pesticides safely. Explain how to manage and dispose of surplus pesticide and waste materials safely. Explain the record keeping requirements for the storage and use of pesticides. 	1.M.1 Evaluate the suitability of a given store for different pesticides.	
2. Understand pesticide product labelling, associated environmental factors and risks to be considered.	 2.1. Interpret a given pesticide product information leaflet. 2.2. Explain how to minimise the risk of environmental contamination for a given pesticide. 2.3. Explain the emergency procedures to be implemented in the event of contamination from a given pesticide. 2.4. Explain the environmental factors to be considered in the safe mixing and application of a given pesticide. 	2.M.1 Evaluate the environmental impact of not following the recommendations in relation to pesticide spray rate and spraying conditions.	2.D.1 Develop and justify a pesticide control plan for a given crop to minimise environmental impact.
 Understand how to correctly prepare and use a knapsack sprayer. 	 3.1. Explain the reasons for applying the correct amount of pesticide to the crop. 3.2. Perform pre-use checks on knapsack sprayer and identify 	3.M.1 Evaluate how settings for a sprayer can be adjusted to optimise application rate	



	applicatorand efficiency of operation.components and controls.operation.3.3. Measure and calculate the area, quantities of pesticide and water required for a certain area to be sprayed and prepare sprayer for use.	
 Understand how to correctly apply pesticide and the need for safe disposal of waste product. 	 4.1. Explain the importance of correct application of pesticide. 4.M.1 Evaluate the potential risks to the operator of incorrect application and disposal of pesticide. 4.2. Perform pesticide application procedures safely and accurately. 4.3. Complete a treatment record for a treated crop. 4.4. Explain how to manage surplus pesticide safely. 4.5. Explain how to dispose of residual pesticide in the sprayer tank safely. 4.6. Explain how to clean and decontaminate knapsack sprayers. 4.7. Explain the storage requirements for knapsack sprayers. 	4.D.1 Develop a Standard Operating Procedure for the application of a given pesticide to include a) the operator b) machinery and equipment
Assessment Guidance		

The following assessment method/s may be used to ensure all learning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully covered.

Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log



Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests





Title		All-Terrain Vehicles and Rough Terrain Telescopic Forklift Operations		
Level	Three			
Credit Value	10			
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	60			
OCN NI Unit Code	CBF379			
Unit Reference No	F/618/6958			
<i>Unit purpose and aim(s):</i> This u Terrain Vehicles (ATVs) and Ro			edge to safely operate All-	
Learning Outcomes	Assessment Criteria = Pass	Assessment Criteria = Merit	Assessment Criteria = Distinction	
1. Understand the functions	1.1. Explain five key	1.M.1 Evaluate how		
of key components of	components of both	settings for the		
ATVs and (RTFLs and	ATVs and RTFLs.	following can		
undertake adjustments.	1.2. Perform operator	be adjusted to		
,	adjustments and	optimise		
	inputs on five	efficiency for a		
	components used in:	given:		
1	a) ATVs	a) ATV		
	b) RTFLs	b) RTFL		
2. Understand the operating	2.1. Explain the operating	2.M.1 Evaluate the	2.D.1 Assess and justify	
principles, transmission	principles and	benefits of	for a given land-	
systems and lines of drive of ATVs and RTFLs.	features of ATV's and	different types of	based business	
of ATVs and RTFLS.	RTFLS.	transmissions in ATVs and	RTFL requirements	
	2.2. Explain the operating principles and	RTFLs including:	making	
	features of	a) power	recommendations	
	transmission systems	consumption	on the	
	in ATVs and RTFLs.	b) fuel	specifications.	
	2.3. Explain factors that	efficiency		
	may affect the lines of	c) safety		
	drive for ATVs	d) machine		
	RTFLs.	wear		
3. Be able to prepare and	3.1. Prepare for use and	3.M.1 Critically	3.D.1 Develop Standard	
operate ATVs and	operate both an ATV	compare the	Operating	
RTFLs.	and a RFTL for a	benefits of using	Procedures for the	
	given task.	ATV's and RTFL's in a land-	safe use of an ATV and RTFL in land-	
		based business	based businesses	
		c to other	for a given	
		conventional	situation.	
1		machinery.		
4. Be able to maintain ATVs	4.1. Explain the	··· , ·		
and RTFLs and the	importance of the			
importance of servicing	maintenance and			
for both.	service of ATVs and			
	RTFLs.			
	4.2. Perform routine			
	maintenance on ATVs			
	and RTFLs including:			
	a) checking oil levels and			
	topping up as			
	required			
	b) checking filters			
	and replacing as			
	required			
1	c) checking tyre			
1	pressure and			
	condition and			

OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business Qualification no. 603/7399/4 Updated: 19 July 2021



Assessment Guidance	adjusting as required d) checking all lights are operating correctly e) cleaning	ning outcomes and assessment criteria are fully
covered.		and assessment offend are fully
Assessment Method	Definition	Possible Content
Portfolio of evidence	A collection of documents containing work undertaken to be assessed as evidence to meet required skills outcomes OR A collection of documents containing work that shows the learner's progression through the course	Learner notes/written work Learner log/diary Peer notes Record of observation Record of discussion
Practical demonstration/assignment	A practical demonstration of a skill/situation selected by the tutor or by learners, to enable learners to practise and apply skills and knowledge	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Learner log
Coursework	Research or projects that count towards a learner's final outcome and demonstrate the skills and/or knowledge gained throughout the course	Record of observation Learner notes/written work Tutor notes/record Learner log/diary
E-assessment	The use of information technology to assess learners' work	Electronic portfolio E-tests





Quality Assurance of Centre Performance

External Verification

All OCN NI recognised centres are subject to External Verification. External verification visits and monitoring activities will be conducted annually to confirm continued compliance with the conditions of recognition, review the centre's risk rating for the qualification and to assure OCN NI of the maintenance of the integrity of the qualification.

The External Verifier will review the delivery and assessment of this qualification. This will include the review of a sample of assessment evidence and evidence of the internal verification of assessment and assessment decisions. This will form the basis of the External Verification report and will inform OCN NI's annual assessment of centre compliance and risk. The External Verifier is appointed by OCN NI.

Standardisation

As a process, standardisation is designed to ensure consistency and promote good practice in understanding and the application of standards. Standardisation events:

- make qualified statements about the level of consistency in assessment across centres delivering a qualification
- make statements on the standard of evidence that is required to meet the assessment criteria for units in a qualification
- make recommendations on assessment practice
- produce advice and guidance for the assessment of units
- identify good practice in assessment and internal verification

Centres offering units of an OCN NI qualification must attend and contribute assessment materials and learner evidence for standardisation events if requested.

OCN NI will notify centres of the nature of sample evidence required for standardisation events (this will include assessment materials, learner evidence and relevant assessor and internal verifier documentation). OCN NI will make standardisation summary reports available and correspond directly with centres regarding event outcomes.





Administration

Registration

A centre must register learners within 20 working days of commencement of a qualification.

Certification

Certificates will be issued to centres within 20 working days of receipt of correctly completed results marksheets. It is the responsibility of the centre to ensure that certificates received from OCN NI are held securely and distributed to learners promptly and securely.

Charges

OCN NI publishes all up to date qualification fees in its Fees and Invoicing Policy document. Further information can be found on the centre login area of the OCN NI website.

Equality, Fairness and Inclusion

OCN NI has considered the requirements of equalities legislation in developing the specification for these qualifications. For further information and guidance relating to access to fair assessment and the OCN NI Reasonable Adjustments and Special Considerations policies, centres should refer to the OCN NI website.

Retention of Evidence

OCN NI has published guidance for centres on the retention of evidence. Details are provided in the OCN NI Centre Handbook and can be accessed via the OCN NI website.



OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business

OCN NI Level 3 Extended Diploma in Agricultural Business

Qualification Number: 603/7399/4

Operational start date:	15 April 2021
Operational end date:	31 March 2026
Certification end date:	31 March 2029

Open College Network Northern Ireland (OCN NI) Sirius House 10 Heron Road Belfast BT3 9LE

 Phone:
 028 90463990

 Web:
 www.ocnni.org.uk

